
Mrs J Wallace
Head of Paid Service
Torridge District Council
Riverbank House
Bideford
Devon
EX39 2QG

DX 53606 BIDEFORD
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700

Date: 12 November 2018

MEETING OF AUDIT & GOVERNANCE
On: Tuesday 20 November 2018 At: 2.00 pm

Venue: Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 
2HS

NOTICE OF MEETING

To: Councillor P Hackett (Chair)
Councillor J Hellyer (Vice-Chair)
Councillors: D Brenton, J Himan and R Julian

Non Elected Member: Mr R Levick

Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting

AGENDA
PART I - (OPEN SESSION)

1.  Apologies For Absence 
To receive apologies for absence for the meeting.

2.  Minutes (Pages 3 - 8)
Confirmation of Minutes of the meeting held on 24 July 2018.

3.  Declaration of Interests 
Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of 
their interest when the item is considered.

4.  Agreement of Agenda Items Part I and II 



- 2 -

5.  Urgent Matters Brought Forward with the Permission of the Chair 

6.  Code of Corporate Governance (Pages 9 - 23)
To receive the report of the Service Improvement Officer.

7.  2017-2018 Annual Audit Letter (Pages 24 - 36)
To receive the report of Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors.

8.  Preparation for the 2018/2019 Accounts 
To receive a verbal update from the Strategic Manager (Resources) and Grant 
Thornton LLP, External Auditors.

9.  Managing the Risk of Fraud Corruption (Pages 37 - 47)
To receive a report from the Devon Audit Partnership, Partnership Manager.

10.  Audit Reports Issued to Date (Pages 48 - 68)
To receive a report from the DAP Partnership Manager.

11.  Progress With Agreed Actions (Pages 69 - 73)
To receive the report of the Service Improvement Officer.

12.  Consultation on the Scale of Audit Fees 
To receive a verbal update from the Strategic Manager (Resources).

13.  Grant Thornton Update Report (Pages 74 - 89)
To receive the report from Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors.

14.  Forward Plan (Page 90)

15.  Exclusion of the Public 
The Chair to move:

That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 10 
of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

16.  PART II (CLOSED SESSION) 

17.  Corporate Assurance Risk Register (Pages 91 - 95)
To receive a report from the Strategic Manager (Resources).

Meeting Organiser: Tom Vanstone - Democratic Services



1

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE MEETING

Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS

Tuesday, 24 July 2018 - 2.00 pm

PRESENT Councillor P Hackett (Chair)
Councillors J Hellyer, D Brenton, J Himan and R Julian

ALSO PRESENT J Wallace - Head of Paid Service
S Hearse - Strategic Manager (Resources)
M Bartlett - Engagement Manager
G Daly - Engagement Leader
B Davis - DAP Partnership
C Dobbs - Service Improvement Officer
S Cawsey - Democratic Services Officer

APOLOGIES Mr R Hutchings – DAP Partnership

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.

17.   MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on the 12 June 2018 were presented. 

It was proposed by Councillor Brenton, seconded by Councillor Julian and –

Resolved:

That the minutes be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

(Vote: For - Unanimous)

18.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

There were no declarations of interest.

19.   AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II 

The Agenda as circulated was agreed.

20.   URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 
THE CHAIR 

There were no urgent matters brought forward.

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2

The Strategic Manager (Resources) advised of a change in the Agenda order.   
Agenda item 9 to be brought forward and presented prior to Agenda item 6.

21.   REPORT ON GOING CONCERN 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) presented the report, the purpose of which was 
for Members to consider the S151 Officers’ assessment of the Council as a “going 
concern” in light of the closure of the Statement of Accounts for 2017/18.

A brief discussion ensued on the homelessness provisions and the related 
increasing costs to the Council.   

Members noted the report.

22.   ISA260 AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT 2017/18 

The report had been circulated to the Committee prior to the meeting.

Geraldine Daly from Grant Thornton presented the Audit Findings report for the 
year ending 31 March 2018.   She explained this year the timetable had required 
Officers to provide the draft Statements one month earlier.   

A detailed presentation of the report was given with the key issues arising from the 
statutory audit being highlighted.   It was expected that by Thursday of this week all 
work would be completed and an Unqualified Audit Opinion would be given.

Geraldine Daly referred the Committee to “Independence and Ethics” -  a non-audit 
service had been identified, details of which were included in the report.   It was 
confirmed that the External Auditors for the Authority had remained independent 
throughout this audit.

Questions were asked and duly answered during the presentation of this item.

Geraldine Daly thanked the Strategic Manager (Resources) and the financial team 
for being so responsive to the Auditors over a very short period.  She also thanked 
the Grant Thornton Audit Team who had worked closely with the Finance Team, 
and acknowledged the hard work undertaken by both team.

Members noted the report.

23.   PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) stated that at the last Audit & Governance 
Committee meeting held on 12 June, Members had received a copy of the draft 
financial statements.

Since that meeting an audit had taken place with only a small number of minor 
changes having been made with nothing that changed the outturn position.   These 
changes had been included in the Audit Findings report, and therefore no separate 

Page 4



3

copies of the statements had been produced but were available for Members if they 
wished to see them.

It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Himan that the 
Financial Statements be approved.

(Vote:  For -  Unanimous)

24.   APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 
MARCH 2018 

Prior to the commencement of the meeting, a copy of the Letter of Representation 
had been circulated to the Committee.

It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Hellyer and –

Resolved:

That the Committee approve the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 
2018 and authorise the signing of:

 The Letter of Representation by the Strategic Manager (Resources) and 
Chair of the meeting

 The Financial Statements by the Chair of the meeting

(Vote:  For – Unanimous)

It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Julian and –

Resolved:

 That the Annual Governance Statement be signed by the Chair of Audit & 
Governance Committee, the Statutory Finance Officer, Leader of the Council 
and Head of Paid Service

(Vote:  For – Unanimous)

25.   APPOINTMENT OF REPORTING ACCOUNTANT FOR HOUSING BENEFIT 
SUBSIDY 2018-19 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) gave a verbal update regarding the 
appointment OF A Reporting Accountant for Housing Benefit Subsidy 2018-19.

The Committee were informed of the changes to the process from 2018-19.  
Through the Audit Appointment Process Grant Thornton had been appointed as 
Auditors for the Authority for the next five years.   

Page 5



4

From 2018-19 the Certification work became a separate process allowing Local 
Authorities to appoint their own Auditors.   This does not require a formal 
appointment by Committee.

The Strategic Manager (Resources) advised the Committee that a decision had 
been made to appoint Grant Thornton for 2018-19 to carry out this work. 

26.   UPDATE ON HEALTH & SAFETY AUDIT 2017/18 

The Audit & Governance Committee at the meeting on 12 June, had resolved to 
invite the Environmental Health & Community Safety Manager to attend and give 
an update on the risks identified in the Audit report.

The Environmental Health & Community Safety Manager gave a comprehensive 
verbal update on each area that had been identified.

The update included the following :

 Health & Safety – Policies now with Head of Paid Service and Leader for 
review and signature

 Currently working on a number of procedures, ie lone working, violence, 
accident reporting etc. identified as being most needed for review.  It is 
hoped to have these reviewed and published within the next six weeks.

 Red item – Resource gap for health and safety work at the Council.  A 
nominated Health & Safety advisor is only part time, the other role of the 
advisor takes up a lot of his time.   Senior Management Team had realised 
the seriousness of the situation and had agreed to find an external resource.  
Currently looking at determining what priority areas external assistance 
would be looking at.  Discussions had taken place with the Harbour Board to 
determine whether any further assistance is required in that area.  
Resources will be made available, now looking at how best to use the 
additional assistance.

 Risk Assessments – Policies being updated and reviewed with all 
Operational Management Teams to establish whether their own Policies are 
sufficient.

 Training – meeting with new HR Officer.   Looking to identify training needs 
across the Authority, and will also look at what health and safety 
requirements will come out of that process.  

 Reporting of accidents, a review is ongoing 

 Risk Registers – Attend Corporate Risk Management Group meetings on a 
regular basis to give updates.

Page 6



5

Following the discussion the Environmental Health & Community Safety Officer 
addressed all concerns raised by the Committee.

Councillor Brenton felt it was important that the Unions be kept informed of all 
reported shortfalls.  The Head of Paid Service reported that as the Union 
Representatives attend Staff Forums, an item in relation to this matter could be 
included on the Agenda.

The Chair thanked the Environmental Health & Community Safety Officer for giving 
such a comprehensive update.

27.   AGS - REVIEW OF EVIDENCE: PRINCIPLES B3 AND C2 

The Service Improvement Officer presented the evidence to support the Annual 
Governance Statement.    The evidence in sections B3 and C2 was discussed and 
the supporting database was noted.

28.   EFFECTIVENESS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The representative from the DAP Partnership presented the report and the 
checklist, attached as Appendix A to the report, showing the Committee’s current 
compliance against the CIPFA requirements.     

The new and updated elements to the checklist were highlighted to the Committee.    

A concern was raised by Councillor Brenton who emphasised the importance of all 
Members being kept informed on all key elements relating to this Committee.    The 
Committee discussed the ways in which information at present was being relayed 
to Members, and acknowledged the Committee do not publish an annual report to 
account for its performance and to explain the work that had been undertaken.    
Advice was given by the Strategic Manager (Resources) who suggested that now 
would be an appropriate time to prepare an annual report as the accounts had 
been signed off.   Service Improvement Officer agreed to draft a report in August 
2018.

Following a request by Members for further training, the DAP Partnership agreed to 
liaise with the Service Improvement Officer with regard to training dates.  The dates 
to be circulated to the Committee.

Members noted the report.

29.   FORWARD PLAN 

The Forward Plan was noted.

30.   CORPORATE ASSURANCE RISK REGISTER - JULY 2018 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) presented this item.  He advised there had 
been no significant changes since the previous meeting.

Page 7



6

The additional actions within each corporate risk and the actions taken to mitigate 
the risk were highlighted to Members.

Members noted the update.

The meeting commenced at 2pm and closed at 3.35pm

Chair: Date:

Page 8



Agenda Item

REPORT OF Service Improvement Officer
To: Audit & Governance Committee
Subject: Code of Governance
Date: 20th November 2018 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 
It is necessary for the Council to carry out an annual review of its Corporate Governance 
arrangements. A revised Code of Governance is attached for consideration.

1. INTRODUCTION
Regulation 4 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2011) requires the Council to conduct 
a review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its Annual Governance Statement.  

The Annual Governance Statement refers to a Code of Corporate Governance, and the 
revised Code is at Appendix A.

2. REPORT
The Code of Corporate Governance is derived from work undertaken by the Independent 
Commission on Good Governance in Public Service – a commission set up by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Office for Public 
Management. The Commission utilised work done by, amongst others, Cadbury (1992), 
Nolan (1995) and CIPFA/SOLACE (2001). The Commission identified six core principles 
which were published in 2004, in a publication entitled ‘The Good Governance Standard for 
Public Services’. A revised Framework was developed by the CIPFA/SOLACE Joint working 
Group on Good Governance in Local Government in 2015 and the group’s conclusions are 
set out in Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English 
Authorities 2016. The framework has seven core principles which emphasise the 
importance of considering the longer term and the links between governance and public 
financial management – all key considerations for local authorities in today’s climate.  

The seven core principles are:

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 
respecting the rule of law;

B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement;

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits;
D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended 

outcomes;
E. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 

individuals within it;
F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public 

financial management; and
G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit, to deliver effective 

accountability

The Council strives to meet the highest standards of corporate governance to help ensure it 
meets its objectives. Members and Senior Officers are responsible for putting in place 
proper arrangements for the governance of the Council’s affairs and stewardship of the 
resources at its disposal. This Code of Corporate Governance describes what the Council 
will do to meet each of the key principles of good governance

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
There is a legal requirement to have an Annual Governance Statement as part of the 
approval of the annual statement of accounts.

Financial Implications
None

Human Resources Implications
None

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
N/A

Equality/Diversity
An Equality Impact Assessment was prepared for the original Code of Governance.

Risk Management
There is a reputational risk to the Council if it does not comply with its Code of Governance 
and this must be kept up to date. There is an underlying risk that governance arrangements 
are not implemented, monitored and reviewed in accordance with best practise.

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
Approval and adoption of the Code of Governance is a key aspect of demonstrating that 
Torridge District Council has a formal and established response to the Corporate 
Governance requirements.

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
The Chair of the Audit & Governance Committee said “Each year the Committee scrutinises 
the Council’s governance arrangements. The core principles provided by CIPFA/SOLACE 
help us to focus on the key areas which need to be covered to ensure we carry out our 
business within an open and robust governance framework. “

4. CONCLUSIONS

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the revised Code of Corporate Governance be approved.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Officers Consulted  -  SMT
Members Consulted – Councillor Philip Hackett 

Contact Officer: Chris Dobbs

Background Papers: The CIPFA/SOLACE: ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government Framework’, produced jointly in 2007
The CIPFA/SOLACE: ‘Delivering Good Governance Addendum’, 
produced jointly in 2012
The CIPFA/SOLACE: Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities 2016.
Torridge AGS Evidence Database

Page 10



Code of Corporate 
Governance - 2019 

Issue Number 13 

Approved Audit & Governance Committee 

Approval Date November 2018 

Next Review Date November 2019 

P
age 11



2 

C.  Defining outcomes in 
terms of sustainable 

economic, social, and 
environmental benefits 

D.  Determining the 
interventions necessary to 

optimise the achievement of 
the intended outcomes 

F.  Managing risks and 
performance through robust 
internal control and strong 

public financial management 

G.  Implementing good 
practices in transparency, 

reporting, and audit, to 
deliver effective 
accountability 

A. Behaving with integrity, 

demonstrating strong 

commitment to ethical 

values, and respecting the 

rule of law 

B. Ensuring openness 

and comprehensive 

stakeholder engagement 

What is Corporate Governance? 

In the public sector Good Governance means: "Achieving the Intended Outcomes While Acting in the Public Interest at all Times”.  

Corporate governance generally refers to the processes by which an organisation is directed, controlled, led and held to account. Torridge 

District Council’s governance framework aims to ensure that in conducting its business it: 

 operates in a lawful, open, inclusive and honest manner 

 makes sure public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and spent wisely 

 has effective arrangements in place to manage risk 

 meets the needs of Torridge communities - secures continuous improvements in the way it operates. 

Our governance framework comprises of the culture, values, systems and processes by with the Council is directed and controlled. It brings 

together an underlying set of legislative and regulatory requirements, good practice principles and management processes, as set out in  

Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Guidance Notes for English Authorities 2016 (CIPFA/SOLACE). 

The diagram on the right illustrates how the various  

principles for good governance in the public sector relate  

to each other.  
 

Principles A and B permeate implementation of principles  

C to G. The diagram also illustrates that good governance  

is dynamic, and that an entity as a whole should be  

committed to improving governance on a continuing basis  

through a process of evaluation and review. 

Torridge District Council strives to meet the 

highest standards of corporate governance to 

help ensure it meets its objectives. Members and 

Senior Officers are responsible for putting in 

place proper arrangements for the governance of 

the Council’s affairs and stewardship of the 

resources at its disposal. This Code of 

Corporate Governance describes what the 

Council will do to meet each of the key 

principles of good governance. 
 

Each year the Council undertakes a review of its 

corporate governance arrangements, and at the 

end of each year produces an Annual 

Governance Statement which outlines the 

effectiveness of the Code of Governance and its 

application, suggesting areas for improvement 

and recommendations as appropriate. 

E  Developing the entity’s 
capacity, including the 

capability of its leadership 
and the individuals within it  

P
age 12



 

 

 

Local government organisations are accountable not only for how much they spend, but also for how they use the resources 

under their stewardship. This includes accountability for outputs, both positive and negative, and for the outcomes they have 

achieved. In addition, they have an overarching responsibility to serve the public interest in adhering to the requirements of 

legislation and government policies. It is essential that, as a whole, they can demonstrate the appropriateness of all their 
actions and have mechanisms in place to encourage and enforce adherence to ethical values and to respect the rule of law.  

We will: 

Behave with integrity. 

 

We will do this by: 

 Ensuring Members and officers behave with integrity and lead a culture where acting in the public interest is visibly and 

consistently demonstrated thereby protecting the reputation of the organisation 

 Ensuring Members take the lead in establishing specific operating principles or values for the organisation and its staff and that 

they are communicated and understood. These should build on the Seven Principles of Public Life (the Nolan Principles) 

 Leading by example and using the above standard operating principles or values as a framework for decision making and other 

actions 

 Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the standard operating principles or values through appropriate policies and 

processes which are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that they are operating effectively. 

We will: 

Respect the rule of law 

 

We will do this by: 

 Ensuring Members and staff  demonstrate a strong commitment to 

the rule of the law as well as adhering to relevant laws and 

regulations 

 Creating the conditions to ensure that the statutory officers, other 

key post holders, and Members, are able to fulfil their 

responsibilities in accordance with legislative and regulatory 

requirements 

 Striving to optimise the use of the full powers available for the 

benefit of its citizens, communities and other stakeholders 

 Dealing with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions effectively  

 Ensuring corruption and misuse of power are dealt with effectively. 

 

We will: 

Demonstrate strong commitment to ethical values 

 

We will do this by: 

 Seeking to establish, monitor and maintain the 

organisation’s ethical standards and performance 

 Underpinning personal behaviour with ethical values and 

ensuring they permeate all aspects of the organisation’s 

culture and operation 

 Developing and maintaining robust policies and procedures 

which place emphasis on agreed ethical values 

 Ensuring that external providers of service on behalf of the 

organisation are required to act with integrity and in 

compliance with ethical standards expected by the 

organisation. 
3 

Principle A - Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical 

values, and respecting the rule of law 
 

P
age 13



 

 

Local government is run for the public good, organisations therefore should ensure openness in their activities. Clear, trusted 

channels of communication and consultation should be used to engage effectively with all groups of stakeholders, such as 

individual citizens and service users, as well as institutional stakeholders. 

We will: 

Be Open 

 

We will do this by: 

 Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, documenting and 

communicating the organisation’s commitment to openness  

 Making decisions that are  open about actions, plans, resource use, 

forecasts, outputs and outcomes. The presumption is for openness. If that 

is not the case, a justification for the reasoning for keeping a decision 

confidential should be provided   

 Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in both public records 

and explanations to stakeholders and being explicit about the criteria, 

rationale and considerations used. In due course, ensuring that the impact 

and consequences of those decisions are clear 

 Using formal and informal consultation and engagement to determine the 

most appropriate and effective interventions/courses of action. 

We will: 

Engage with individual citizens and service 

users effectively 

 

We will do this by: 

 Establishing a clear policy on the type of issues 

that the organisation will meaningfully consult 

with or involve  communities, individual 

citizens, service users and other stakeholders 

to ensure that service (or other) provision is 

contributing towards the achievement of 

intended outcomes.  

 Ensuring that communication methods are 

effective and that Members and officers are 

clear about their roles with regard to 

community engagement 

 Encouraging, collecting and evaluating the 

views and experiences of communities, 

citizens, service users  and organisations  of 

different backgrounds including reference to 

future use 

 Implementing effective feedback mechanisms 

in order to demonstrate how views have been 

taken into account 

 Balancing  feedback from more active 

stakeholder groups with other stakeholder 

groups to ensure inclusivity 

 Taking account of the impact on future 

generations of tax payers and service users.  

We will: 

Engage comprehensively with institutional stakeholders 

 

We will do this by: 

 Effectively engaging with institutional stakeholders  to ensure that the 

purpose, objectives and intended outcomes for each stakeholder 

relationship are clear so that outcomes are achieved successfully and 

sustainably 

 Developing formal and informal partnerships to allow for resources to be 

used more efficiently and outcomes achieved more effectively  

 Ensuring that partnerships are based on: Trust; A Shared Commitment to 

Change; A Culture that Promotes and Accepts Challenge Among Partners; 

and that the added value of partnership working is explicit. 
4 

Principle B - Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 

P
age 14



 

 

 

The long-term nature and impact of many of local government’s responsibilities mean that it should define and plan outcomes 

and that these should be sustainable. Decisions should further the organisation’s purpose, contribute to intended benefits and 

outcomes, and remain within the limits of authority and resources. Input from all groups of stakeholders, including citizens, 

service users, and institutional stakeholders, is vital to the success of this process and in balancing competing demands when 

determining priorities for the finite resources available .  

We will: 
Define Outcomes 
 

We will do this by: 

 Having a clear vision, which is in an agreed formal 

statement of the organisation’s purpose and intended 

outcomes containing appropriate performance indicators, 

which provide the basis for the organisation’s overall 

strategy, planning and other decisions  

 Specifying the intended impact on, or changes for, 

stakeholders including individual citizens and service 

users. It could be immediately or over the course of a year 

or longer 

 Delivering defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within 

the resources that will be available 

 Identifying and managing risks to the achievement of 

outcomes  

Managing service users’ expectations effectively with 

regard to determining priorities and making the best use of  

the resources available. 

We will: 

Provide sustainable economic, social and environmental 

benefits 

 

We will do this by: 

 Considering and balancing the combined economic, social 

and environmental impact of policies and plans when 

taking decisions about service provision 

 Taking a longer-term view with regard to decision making, 

taking account of risk and acting transparently where there 

are potential conflicts  between the organisation’s intended 

outcomes and short-term factors such as the political cycle 

or financial constraints 

 Determining  the wider public interest associated with 

balancing conflicting interests between achieving the 

various economic, social and environmental benefits, 

through consultation where possible, in order to ensure 

appropriate trade-offs 

 Ensuring fair access to services. 

5 

Principle C - Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and 

environmental benefits 

P
age 15



 

 

 

 

 

Local government achieves its intended outcomes by providing a mixture of legal, regulatory, and practical interventions 

(courses of action). Determining the right mix of these courses of action is a critically important strategic choice that the 

Council has to make to ensure intended outcomes are achieved. The Council needs robust decision-making mechanisms to 

ensure that their defined outcomes can be achieved in a way that provides the best trade-off between the various types of 

resource inputs while still enabling effective and efficient operations. Decisions made need to be reviewed frequently to 

ensure that achievement of outcomes is optimised.  

We will: 

Determine Interventions 

 

We will do this by: 

 Ensuring  decision makers receive objective and rigorous analysis of a 

variety of options indicating how  intended outcomes would be achieved 

and associated risks. Therefore ensuring best value is achieved however 

services are provided 

 Considering feedback from citizens and service users when making 

decisions about service improvements or where services are no longer 

required in order to prioritise competing demands with limited resources 

available including people, skills, land and assets and bearing in mind 

future impacts. 

We will: 

Optimise achievement of intended outcomes 

 

We will do this by: 

 Ensuring the medium term financial strategy integrates and balances 

service priorities, affordability and other resource constraints 

 Ensuring the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking into account the 

full cost of operations over the medium and longer term 

 Ensuring the medium term financial strategy sets the context for ongoing 

decisions on significant delivery issues or responses to changes in the 

external environment that may arise during the budgetary period in order 

for outcomes to be achieved while optimising resource usage 

 Ensuring the achievement of ‘social value’ through service planning and 

commissioning. 

 

We will: 

Plan interventions 

 

We will do this by: 

 Establishing  and implementing robust planning and control 

cycles that cover strategic and operational plans, priorities 

and targets  

 Engaging with internal and external stakeholders in 

determining how services and other courses of action should 

be planned and delivered 

 Considering and monitoring risks facing each partner when 

working collaboratively, including shared risks 

 Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the 

mechanisms for delivering goods and services can be 

adapted to changing circumstances 

 Establishing appropriate key performance indicators (KPIs) 

as part of the planning process in order to identify how the 

performance of services and projects is to be measured  

 Ensuring capacity exists to generate the information required 

to review service quality regularly 

 Preparing budgets in accordance with objectives, strategies 

and the medium term financial plan  

 Informing medium and long term resource planning by 

drawing up realistic estimates of revenue and capital 

expenditure aimed at developing a sustainable funding 

strategy. 

6 

Principle D - Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of 

the intended outcomes 

P
age 16



 

 

 

 

 

Local government needs appropriate structures and leadership, as well as people with the right skills, appropriate qualifications 

and mindset, to operate efficiently and effectively and achieve their intended outcomes within the specified periods. A local 

government organisation must ensure that it has both the capacity to fulfil its own mandate and to make certain that there are 

policies in place to guarantee that its management has the operational capacity for the organisation as a whole. Because both 

individuals and the environment in which an organisation operates will change over time, there will be a continuous need to 

develop its capacity as well as providing training to develop the skills and experience of individual staff members. Leadership in 

local government is strengthened by the participation of people with many different types of backgrounds, reflecting the 

structure and diversity of communities.  

We will: 

Develop the entity’s capacity 

 

We will do this by: 

 Reviewing operations, performance and use of 

assets on a regular basis to ensure their continuing 

effectiveness 

 Improving resource use through appropriate 

application of techniques such as benchmarking and 

other options in order to determine how resources 

are allocated so that defined outcomes are achieved 

effectively and efficiently 

 Recognising the benefits of partnerships and 

collaborative working where added value can be 

achieved 

 Developing and maintaining an effective workforce 

plan to enhance the strategic allocation of resources.   

We will: 

Develop the capability of the entity’s leadership and other 

individuals  

 

We will do this by: 

 Developing protocols to ensure that elected and appointed leaders 

negotiate with each other regarding their respective roles early on 

in the relationship and that a shared understanding of roles and 

objectives is maintained 

 Publishing a statement that specifies the types of decisions that 

are delegated and those reserved for the collective decision 

making of the governing body 

 Ensuring the Leader and the Head of Paid Service have clearly 

defined and distinctive leadership roles within a structure whereby 

the Head of Paid Service leads in implementing strategy and 

managing the delivery of services and other outputs set by 

Members and each provides a check and a balance for each 

other’s authority 

 

    Continued…. 

 

7 

Principle E - Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership 

and the individuals within it 

P
age 17



 

 

 

 

Continued… 

We will: 

Develop the capability of the entity’s leadership and other individuals 

Continued… 

 

We will do this by: 

 Developing the capabilities of Members and Senior Management to achieve effective leadership and to enable the 

organisation to respond successfully to changing legal and policy demands as well as economic, political and environmental 

changes and risks by: 

 Ensuring Members and staff have access to appropriate induction tailored to their role and that ongoing training and 

development matching individual and organisational requirements is available and encouraged 

 Identifying training needs to ensure Members and Senior Officers have the appropriate skills, knowledge resources 

and support to fulfil their roles and responsibilities and ensuring that they are able to update their knowledge on a 

continuing basis 

 Ensuring personal, organisational and system-wide development through shared learning, including lessons learned 

from governance weaknesses both internal and external 

 Ensuring that there are structures in place to encourage public participation 

 Taking steps to consider  the leadership’s own effectiveness and ensuring leaders are open to constructive feedback from 

peer review and inspections 

 Holding staff to account through regular performance reviews which take account of training or development needs 

 Ensuring arrangements are in place to maintain  the health and wellbeing of the workforce and support individuals in 

maintaining their own physical and mental wellbeing.  

 

8 

Principle E - Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership 

and the individuals within it 

P
age 18



 

 

 

Local government needs to ensure that the organisations and governance structures that it oversees have implemented, and 

can sustain, an effective performance management system that facilitates effective and efficient delivery of planned services. 

Risk management and internal control are important and integral parts of a performance management system and are crucial 

to the achievement of outcomes. Risk should be considered and addressed as part of all decision making activities. 

  

A strong system of financial management is essential for the implementation of policies and the achievement of intended 

outcomes, as it will enforce financial discipline, strategic allocation of resources, efficient service delivery and accountability.  

 

It is also essential that a culture and structure for scrutiny are in place as a key part of accountable decision making, policy 

making and review. A positive working culture that accepts, promotes and encourages constructive challenge is critical to 

successful scrutiny and successful service delivery. Importantly, this culture does not happen automatically, it requires 

repeated public commitment from those in authority. 

We will: 

Manage risk 

 

We will do this by: 

 Recognising  that risk management is an integral part of all activities 

and must be considered in all aspects of decision making 

 Implementing robust and integrated risk management arrangements 

and ensuring that they are working effectively 

 Ensuring that responsibilities for managing individual risks are 

clearly allocated.  

Note: Although we recognise that not all risks can be eliminated, we 

will ensure that we understand the impact of those risks and reduce 

them to an acceptable level over time.  

We will: 

Have strong public financial management 

 

We will do this by: 

 Ensuring financial management supports both 

long term achievement of outcomes and short-

term financial and operational performance 

 Ensuring well-developed financial management 

is integrated at all levels of planning and control, 

including management of financial risks and 

controls.  

9 

Principle F - Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and 

strong public financial management 

P
age 19



10 

 

 

 

Continued… 

We will: 

Have robust internal controls 

 

We will do this by: 

 Aligning the risk management strategy and policies on internal 

control with achieving objectives  

 Evaluating and monitoring risk management and internal 

control on a regular basis 

 Ensuring effective counter fraud and anti-corruption 

arrangements are in place 

 Ensuring additional assurance on the overall adequacy and 

effectiveness of the framework of governance, risk 

management and control is provided by the internal auditor 

 Ensuring an audit committee which is independent of the 

executive and accountable to the governing body: 

 Provides a further source of assurance regarding the 

authority’s arrangements for managing risk and 

maintaining an effective control environment 

 And its recommendations are listened to and acted 

upon.  

 

We will: 

Manage performance 

 

We will do this by: 

Monitoring service delivery effectively including planning, 

specification, execution and independent post 

implementation review 

Making decision based on relevant, clear objective 

analysis and advice pointing out the  implications and 

risks inherent in the organisation’s financial, social and 

environmental position and outlook 

 Ensuring an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in  

place which encourages effective and constructive 

challenge and debate on policies and objectives to 

support balanced and effective decision making  

 Providing Members and Senior Management with regular 

reports on service delivery plans and on progress 

towards outcome achievement  

 Ensuring there is consistency between specification 

stages (such as budgets) and post implementation 

reporting (e.g. financial statements).  

We will: 

Manage Data 

 

We will do this by: 

 Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the safe collection, storage, use and sharing of data, including processes to 

safeguard personal data and preparations for compliance with the General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) in May 2018.  

 Ensuring effective arrangements are in place and operating effectively when sharing data with other bodies 

 Reviewing and auditing regularly the quality and accuracy of data used in decision making and performance monitoring.  

Principle F - Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and  

strong public financial management 

P
age 20



 

 

 
 

Accountability is about ensuring that those making decisions and delivering services are answerable for them. Effective 

accountability is concerned not only with reporting on actions completed, but also ensuring that stakeholders are able to 

understand and respond as the organisation plans and carries out its activities in a transparent manner. Both external and 

internal audit contribute to effective accountability.  

We will: 

Implement good practice in transparency 

 

We will do this by: 

 Writing and communicating reports for the 

public and other stakeholders in a fair, 

balanced and understandable style appropriate 

to the intended audience and ensuring that they 

are easy to access and interrogate 

 Striking a balance between providing  the right 

amount of information to satisfy transparency 

demands and enhance public scrutiny whilst 

not being too onerous to provide and for users 

to understand. 

We will: 

Provide assurance and effective accountability 

 

We will do this by: 

 Ensuring that recommendations for corrective action made by internal and external audit are acted upon 

 Ensuring an effective internal audit service with direct access to Members is in place, providing assurance with regard to governance 

arrangements and that recommendations are acted upon 

 Welcoming peer challenge, reviews and inspections from regulatory bodies and implementing recommendations 

 Gaining assurance on risks associated with delivering services through third parties and this is evidenced in the annual governance 

statement 

 Ensuring that when working in partnership, arrangements for accountability are clear and the need for wider public accountability has 

been recognised and met.  

We will: 

Implement good practices in reporting 

 

We will do this by: 

 Reporting at least annually on performance, value for money and stewardship of 

resources 

 Ensuring Members and Senior Management own the results 

 Ensuring robust arrangements for assessing the extent to which the principles 

contained in this Framework have been applied and publishing the results on 

this assessment, including an action plan for improvement and evidence to 

demonstrate good governance (the Annual Governance Statement) 

 Ensuring that this framework is applied to jointly managed or shared service 

organisations as appropriate  

 Ensuring the performance information that accompanies the financial 

statements is prepared on a consistent and timely basis and the statements 

allow for comparison with other, similar organisations. 

11 

Principle G – Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to 

deliver effective accountability 

P
age 21



Code of 

Corporate  

Governance 

Head of 

Paid 

Service 

Monitoring 

Officer 

Section 

151 

Officer 

Property 

Manager 

Devon Audit 

Partnership 
External 

Audit 

Human 

Resources 

Governance 

Manager 

Senior 

Managers 

Decision 

Notices and 

Minutes O&S 

(Int/Ext) 

Committee 

C&R 

Plans 

Licensing 

Audit & 

Governance 

Committee 

Standards 

Committee 

Constitution 

General 

Public 

Members 

Governance : Key Functions 

12 

P
age 22



Code of 

Corporate  

Governance 

Head of 

Paid 

Service 

Monitoring 

Officer 

Section 

151 

Officer 

Property 

Manager 

Devon Audit 

Partnership 

External 

Audit 

Human 

Resources 

Governance 

Manager 

Senior 

Managers 

Grant Thornton 

• Ensure economic, efficient, & 

effective public services 

• Performance reports 

• Financial reports 

• VfM conclusions 

Decision 

Notices and 

Minutes 
O&S 

(Int/Ext) 

Committee 

C&R 

Plans 

Licensing 

Audit & 

Governance 

Committee 

Standards 

Committee 

Constitution 

Scrutiny 

• Independently review 

activities and decisions 

• Review/develop policies 

• Service reviews 

General 

Public 

Public Engagement 

• Individual surgeries 

• Town/Parish meetings 

• Working parties 

• Community groups 

• Public consultations 

Provide Assurance 

• Risk management framework 

• Control environment 

• Performance Scrutiny 

      (financial & non-financial) 

• Oversee financial reporting 

• CIPFA compliance 

Ethics 

• Promote/maintain high 

standards 

• Members code of conduct 

• Investigate/report on 

breaches to the code 

Members 

Provide Assurance 

• Produce Internal Audit Plan 

• Execute Audit Plan 

• Evaluate internal controls 

• Regular reporting (A&G) 

• Provide audit opinion 

• Compliance with agreed polices & procedures 

• Compliance with Accounts & Audit  Regs 2016 

 

Standards 

• Audit Practices 

Board 

• CIPFA 

• PSIAS 

• IIA 

Corporate Management 

• Staff organisation 

• Economic and effective delivery 

of Council objectives 

• Compliance with section 4 of 

LG&H Act 1989 

Deliver Services 

• Business plan 

goals &objectives 

• Council policies  

• Assurance 

statements 

• Risk Management 

Financial Management 

• Ensure financial implications, 

opportunities & risks are fully considered 

for all material business decisions 

• Promote and deliver good financial 

management 

• Safeguard public monies 

• Comply with Section 151 of the Local 

Govt. Act 1972 

Legal & Ethical Assurance 

• Monitor ethical standards 

• Members code of conduct 

• Standards Committee 

• Openness & transparency 

• Compliance with section 5 of LG&H 

Act 1989 

• Date Security/Data Protection 

• Prepare AGS and evidence 

• Report writing protocol 

• Update Strategic Plan 

• Produce Business Plans & PIs 

• Customer Complaints 

• Communications Strategy 

• Staff newsletter 

• Member Induction & Bulletin 

Asset Management 

• Control asset register 

• Control property database 

• Conditions survey 

• Review property requirements 

• Asset disposal 

• Report to AMWG and C&R 

 

• Recruitment & selection 

• Job evaluation 

• Person specification 

• Induction process 

• Meet identified training needs 

• Control staff changes (GWAF) 

• Annual appraisal system 

 

Governance: 

Roles &  

Responsibilities 

13 

P
age 23



Annual Audit Letter
Year ending 31 March 2018

Torridge District Council 

16 August 2018

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 7



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Torridge District Council |  August 2018 2

Contents

Section Page

1. Executive Summary 3

2. Audit of the Accounts 5

3. Value for Money conclusion 9

Appendices

A  Reports issued and fees 12Your key Grant Thornton 

team members are:

Geraldine Daly

Associate Director

T:  0117 305 7741

E: geri.n.daly@uk.gt.com

Mark Bartlett

Audit Manager

T: 0117 305 7896

E: mark.bartlett@uk.gt.com

Peter Brereton

Executive

T: 0117 305 7888

E: peter.d.brereton@uk.gt.com

P
age 25



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Torridge District Council |  August 2018 3

Executive Summary

Purpose

Our Annual Audit Letter (Letter) summarises the key findings arising from the work 

that we have carried out at Torridge District Council (the Council) for the year ended 

31 March 2018.  

This Letter is intended to provide a commentary on the results of our work to the 

Council and external stakeholders, and to highlight issues that we wish to draw to the 

attention of the public. In preparing this Letter, we have followed the National Audit 

Office (NAO)'s Code of Audit Practice and Auditor Guidance Note (AGN) 07 –

'Auditor Reporting'. We reported the detailed findings from our audit work to the 

Council's Audit and Governance Committee as those charged with governance in our 

Audit Findings Report on 24 July 2018.

Respective responsibilities

We have carried out our audit in accordance with the NAO's Code of Audit Practice, which 

reflects the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act). Our key 

responsibilities are to:

• give an opinion on the Council financial statements (section two)

• assess the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 

use of resources (the value for money conclusion) (section three).

In our audit of the Council financial statements, we comply with International Standards on 

Auditing (UK) (ISAs) and other guidance issued by the NAO.

Materiality We determined materiality for the audit of the Council's financial statements to be £739k, which is 2% of the Council's gross revenue 

expenditure.

Financial Statements opinion We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's financial statements on 30 July 2018. 

Whole of Government Accounts 

(WGA) 

We completed work on the Council’s consolidation return following guidance issued by the NAO. 

Use of statutory powers We did not identify any matters which required us to exercise our additional statutory powers.

Our work

P
age 26



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Torridge District Council |  August 2018 4

Executive Summary

Working with the Council

During the year we have delivered a number of successful outcomes with you:

• An efficient audit – we delivered an efficient audit with you in July, delivering the audit before the new deadline of 31 July

• VFM - we provided you with assurance and feedback on your arrangements for delivering efficiency, effectiveness and economy.

• Sharing our insight – we provided regular audit committee updates covering best practice. We also shared our thought leadership reports

• Providing training – we provided your team with update training on financial accounts

We would like to record our appreciation for the assistance and co-operation provided to us during our audit by the Council's staff.

Grant Thornton UK LLP

August 2018

Value for Money arrangements We were satisfied that the Council put in place proper arrangements to ensure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

We reflected this in our audit report to the Council on 30 July 2018.

Certification of Grants We also carry out work to certify the Council's Housing Benefit subsidy claim on behalf of the Department for Work and Pensions. Our work on 

this claim is not yet complete and will be finalised by 30 November 2018. We will report the results of this work to the Audit and Governance 

Committee in our Annual Certification Letter.

Certificate We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Torridge District Council in accordance with the requirements of the Code of 

Audit Practice.

P
age 27



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Torridge District Council |  August 2018 5

Audit of the Accounts

Our audit approach

Materiality

In our audit of the Council's financial statements, we use the concept of materiality to 

determine the nature, timing and extent of our work, and in evaluating the results of 

our work. We define materiality as the size of the misstatement in the financial 

statements that would lead a reasonably knowledgeable person to change or 

influence their economic decisions. 

We determined materiality for the audit of the Council's accounts to be £739k, which 

is 2% of the Council's gross revenue expenditure. We used this benchmark as, in our 

view, users of the Council's financial statements are most interested in where the 

Council has spent its revenue in the year. 

We also set a lower level of specific materiality for senior officer remuneration of £5k. 

We set a lower threshold of £37k, above which we reported errors to the Audit and 
Governance Committee in our Audit Findings Report.

The scope of our audit

Our audit involves obtaining sufficient evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements to give reasonable assurance that they are free from material 

misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes assessing whether:

• the accounting policies are appropriate, have been consistently applied and adequately 

disclosed; 

• the significant accounting estimates made by management are reasonable; and

• the overall presentation of the financial statements gives a true and fair view. 

We also read the remainder of the Statement of Accounts and the annual governance 

statement published alongside the Statement of Accounts to check they are consistent with our 

understanding of the Council and with the financial statements included in the Statement of 

Accounts on which we gave our opinion.

We carry out our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK) and the NAO Code of Audit Practice. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion.

Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of the Council's business and is risk 

based. 

We identified key risks and set out overleaf the work we performed in response to these risks 

and the results of this work.

P
age 28



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Torridge District Council |  August 2018 6

Audit of the Accounts

Significant Audit Risks
These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work. 

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Management override of controls

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable 

presumed risk that the risk of management over-ride 

of controls is present in all entities.

We identified management override of controls as a 

risk requiring special audit consideration.

As part of our audit work we:

• reviewed accounting estimates, judgements and decisions made by management

• tested journal entries

• reviewed unusual significant transactions

Our audit work did not identify 

any issues in relation to the

management override of 

controls.

Valuation of property, plant and equipment

The Council revalues its land and buildings on an 

quinquennial basis to ensure that carrying value is 

not materially different from fair value. This 

represents a significant estimate by management in 

the financial statements.

We identified the valuation of land and buildings 

revaluations and impairments as a risk requiring 

special audit consideration.

As part of our audit work we:

 reviewed management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, 

the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work.

 reviewed the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management experts used.

 discussed with the Council's valuer the basis on which the valuation was carried out, 

challenging the key assumptions.

 reviewed and challenged the information used by the valuer to ensure it was robust and 

consistent with our understanding.

 tested revaluations made during the year to ensure they were input correctly into the 

Council's asset register

 evaluated the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the 

year and how management satisfied themselves that these  were not materially different to 

current value.

Our audit work did not identify 

any issues in relation to the 

valuation of property, plant and 

equipment.

P
age 29



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Torridge District Council |  August 2018 7

Audit of the Accounts
Significant Audit Risks (continued)
These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work. 

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Valuation of pension fund net liability

The Council's pension fund asset and liability as 

reflected in its balance sheet represent  a significant 

estimate in the financial statements.

We identified the valuation of the pension fund net 

liability as a risk requiring special audit consideration

As part of our audit work we:

 Identified the controls put in place by management to ensure that the pension fund net 

liability is not materially misstated and assessed whether those controls were implemented 

as expected and whether they were sufficient to mitigate the risk of material misstatement.

 Reviewed the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the 

Council's pension fund valuation. 

 Gained an understanding of the basis on which the IAS 19 valuation was carried out, 

undertaking procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made. 

 Reviewed the consistency of the pension fund net liability disclosures in notes to the 

financial statements with the actuarial report from your actuary.

 Obtained assurances from the Pension Fund auditor at Devon County Council.

Our audit work did not identify 

any issues in relation to the 

valuation of the pension fund 

net liability.

P
age 30



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Torridge District Council |  August 2018 8

Audit of the Accounts

Audit opinion
We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's financial statements on 30 July 

2018, in advance of the national deadline.

Preparation of the accounts

The Council presented us with draft accounts in accordance with the national 

deadline, and provided a good set of working papers to support them. The finance 

team responded promptly and efficiently to our queries during the course of the audit.

Issues arising from the audit of the accounts

We reported the key issues from our audit to the Council's Audit and Governance 

Committee on 24 July 2018. 

Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report

We are required to review the Council’s Annual Governance Statement and Narrative 

Report. It published them on its website in and alongside the Statement of Accounts 

in line with the national deadlines. 

Both documents were prepared in line with the CIPFA Code and relevant supporting 

guidance. We confirmed that both documents were consistent with  the financial 

statements prepared by the Council and with our knowledge of the Council. 

Certificate of closure of the audit
We are also required to certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Torridge 

District Council in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Audit Practice.

P
age 31



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Torridge District Council |  August 2018 9

Value for Money conclusion

Background
We carried out our review in accordance with the NAO Code of Audit Practice, 

following the guidance issued by the NAO in November 2017 which specified the 

criterion for auditors to evaluate:

In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and 

deploys resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and 

local people. 

Key findings
Our first step in carrying out our work was to perform a risk assessment and identify 

the key risks where we concentrated our work.

The key risks we identified and the work we performed are set out overleaf.

As part of our Audit Findings report agreed with the Council in July 2018, we agreed 

a recommendation to address our findings:

• The Council must continue to develop robust savings plans to bridge the budget 

gap in the medium term, with regular monitoring and reporting to members.

Overall Value for Money conclusion
We are satisfied that in all significant respects the Council put in place proper arrangements to 

secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ending 31 

March 2018.

P
age 32



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Torridge District Council |  August 2018 10

Value for Money conclusion

Key Value for Money Risks

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Financial sustainability

• The Council has recently refreshed its 

Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS).  

This shows that the Council will need to 

draw on its reserves to balance the budget 

in 2019/20 to 2022/23, with the Transition 

in Government Funding and Business 

Rates Reserves projected to have been 

exhausted by 2022/23 if further savings 

are not identified

We reviewed the Council’s latest MTFS, including the 

assumptions and the savings plans reflected within in it. 

We also considered the projected savings from the 

Transforming Torridge Program, which had been 

excluded from the latest MTFS due to changes and 

delays in the program.

The latest MTFS was presented to Council and approved 

in February 2018. The Council has got a robust strategic 

financial planning process in place, which is consulted on 

and involves members. Planning assumptions are 

reported as part of the decision making process and the 

Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is subject to 

regular review to reflect changing events. The 

assumptions included within the detailed MTFS have 

been considered and appear reasonable and based on 

the latest information available to the Council.

It shows a balanced budget for 2018/19 but the need to 

draw on reserves in 2019/20 to 2022/23.  The budget 

report stated that with no remedial action the budget gap 

in 2022/23 would be £413k with two key reserves having 

been exhausted. 

The budget gap in 2019/20 is £388k, with gaps of £514k, 

£502k and £432k in 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23 

respectively. The savings from the Transforming Torridge 

Program have been temporarily removed from the MTFS 

due to delays and changes to the program. This will be 

reviewed in 2018/19 for inclusion in future years.

The Council's MTFS shows that a balanced budget position can only 

be achieved by the use of reserves over the next four years. The 

Council must develop realistic savings plans to bridge the budget gap.

On that basis we concluded that while the level of savings 

needed represents a significant challenge for the Council, the 

risk was sufficiently mitigated and the Council has proper 

arrangements in place for planning finances effectively to 

support the sustainable delivery of strategic priorities and using 

appropriate cost and performance information to support 

informed decision making.

P
age 33



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Torridge District Council |  August 2018 11

Value for Money conclusion

Key Value for Money Risks

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Delivery of Transforming Torridge

• The Transforming Torridge Program is a 

significant project for the Council and is 

critical to the way it will deliver its services 

in the medium term

We reviewed the progress being made on this key 

project for the Council, which cuts across the VFM sub-

criteria.  A Programme Board was recently introduced 

and we reviewed how the revised governance and 

reporting arrangements are working. This included the 

monitoring of the project, and the reporting to members 

to inform decision making.

The Programme Board is now in place and considers 

updates on specific projects with highlight reports on 

giving a RAG rating of the project progress against plan. 

Full written reports are now presented to Full Council, 

where it is a standing item, rather than verbal updates. 

Governance and reporting arrangements around the 

Transforming Torridge Programme are now much more robust 

with formal reporting to all members on a regular basis and the 

introduction of the Programme Board to concentrate specifically 

on this key area. This will need to be a continuing area of focus 

for the Council.

P
age 34



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Torridge District Council |  August 2018 12

A. Reports issued and fees

We confirm below our final reports issued and fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

Fees

Planned

£

Actual fees 

£

2016/17 fees

£

Statutory Council audit 41,288 41,288 41,288

Housing Benefit Grant Certification 8,220 8,220* 8,444

Total fees 49,508 49,508 49,732

The planned fees for the year were in line with the scale fee set by Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Ltd (PSAA)

* This is the scale fee for 2017/18. The final fee will be confirmed in the Annual 

Certification Letter.

Reports issued

Report Date issued

Audit Plan February 2018

Audit Findings Report July 2018

Annual Audit Letter August 2018

Fees for non-audit services

Service Fees £

Audit related services 

- None Nil

Non-Audit related services

Productivity Plan for the Heart of the South West LEP -

The work was commissioned and billed to Somerset 

County Council. We are obliged to  inform you of this 

work.

35,750

Non- audit services

• For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton 

UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The table above 

summarises all non-audit services which were identified.

• We have considered whether non-audit services might be perceived as a 

threat to our independence as the Council’s auditor and have ensured that 

appropriate safeguards are put in place. 

The above non-audit services are consistent with the Council’s policy on the 

allotment of non-audit work to your auditor.

P
age 35



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  Torridge District Council |  August 2018

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 

firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 

separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 

another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 36



Agenda Item

REPORT OF DAP Partnership Manager
To: Audit & Governance Committee 
Subject: Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption – Self Assessment
Date: 20th November 2018 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  To advise the Audit & Governance Committee of the results of a self 
assessment against the CIPFA code of practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and corruption.  

1. INTRODUCTION

CIPFA’s Counter Fraud Centre has prepared a local government counter fraud and corruption 
strategy for the period 2016 to 2019. 

The guidance emphasises the need for public service organisations to take responsibility to 
embed effective standards for countering fraud and corruption in their organisation. This 
supports good governance and demonstrates effective financial stewardship and strong public 
management.

This guidance is supplemented by the government’s “Fighting Fraud Locally – the Local 
Government Fraud Strategy”.

The Scale of Fraud Losses is alarming; it is accepted that fraud affects the UK across all 
sectors and causes significant harm. The last, most reliable and comprehensive set of figures 
was published by the National Fraud Authority in 2013, and indicates that fraud may be costing 
the UK £52bn a year.

Within these figures the estimated loss to local authorities totalled £2.1bn. The estimated 
losses for local authorities in 2013 are broken down in the attached diagrams.

Not all of the above fraud risks are relevant to Torridge, but the risk of fraud is ever present 
and must be prevented wherever possible. 

2. REPORT
The attached report is a self assessment of the standards in place at Torridge Council against 
the checklist provided by CIPFA to support the Fighting Fraud & Corruption Strategy. (see 
Appendix A).

Members of the Committee will note that, by and large, effective and appropriate standards 
are in place. There is an ongoing need to ensure that policies and procedures follow best 
practice and legislative requirements, and regular updates of practices assists in this.  Overall 
there are good principles to prevent, detect and investigate instances of fraud and corruption.

Internal Audit will continue to ensure that standards and practices are embedded and remain 
effective at deterring and preventing fraud.

Page 37

Agenda Item 9



3. IMPLICATIONS
Legal Implications
Compliance with the CIPFA local government Fighting Fraud & Corruption Strategy 2016-
2019.

Financial Implications
None

Human Resources Implications
None

Sustainability Implications
None

Equality/Diversity
None

Risk Management
The external auditor provides members with assurance on the Financial Statements.

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
None

Ward Member and Lead Member Views
Not consulted in advance of meeting.

4. CONCLUSIONS
Overall the self assessment provides good assurance that sound and effective fraud 
prevention arrangements are in operation.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS
Committee are asked to note:
That Internal Audit reviews continue to ensure that procedures remain effective and are 
updated as required to counter new and emerging fraud threats.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Jenny Wallace, Head of Paid Service 
Steve Hearse, Statutory Finance Officer

Contact Officer: Chris Dobbs, Service Improvement Officer 

Background Papers: CIPFA local government Fighting Fraud & Corruption Strategy

Page 38



P
age 39



P
age 40



Torridge District Council

Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption 

Fighting Fraud & Corruption Locally (2016 – 2019) self-assessment of compliance

Introduction

We have previously self-assessed Torridge against the CIPFA code of practice for Fraud and 
Corruption prepared in 2011. CIPFA has updated its guidance and has prepared a Fighting 
Fraud & Corruption locally strategy, companion and checklist; it is against this checklist that 
the self-assessment has been completed.

The CIPFA strategy and companion are recommended reading, and can be simply 
downloaded, free of charge, from the CIPFA website. Simply go to the CIPFA website 
(cipfa.org) and search for “Fighting Fraud and Corruption”, or follow this link 
https://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally

In response to the risks and challenges that fraud presents, local authorities are expected to 
follow three key principles:-

 Acknowledge: acknowledging and understanding fraud risks and committing support 
and resource to tackling fraud in order to maintain a robust anti-fraud response.

 Prevent: preventing and detecting more fraud by making better use of information 
and technology, enhancing fraud controls and processes and developing a more 
effective anti-fraud culture.

 Pursue: punishing fraudsters and recovering losses by prioritising the use of civil 
sanctions, developing capability and capacity to investigate fraudsters and 
developing a more collaborative and supportive law enforcement response.

CIPFA reports that local authorities have achieved success by following this approach; 
however, they now need to respond to an increased threat, and further develop and 
enhance their counter fraud response by ensuring that it is comprehensive and effective 
and focused on the key changes that will make the most difference.

Counter fraud response should be considered against each six key themes:- 
 Culture 
 Capability 
 Capacity 
 Competence 
 Communication 
 Collaboration 

The following pages set out the expected response from a local authority, and our 
assessment of Torridge’s arrangements against expectations.

Page 41

https://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/fighting-fraud-and-corruption-locally


 CIPFA expected Local Authority response to 
the risk of fraud and corruption.

Torridge current position and

1. The local authority has made a proper 
assessment of its fraud and corruption risks, has 
an action plan to deal with them and regularly 
reports to its senior Board and its members.

The Authority annually prepares a Fraud and 
Corruption risk register. This identifies the risks and 
the controls in place to address these risks.
This is considered by the Senior Management 
Team.
The Corporate Risk Register, which incorporates 
the risk for fraud, is taken to the Audit & 
Governance Committee.

2. The local authority has undertaken an 
assessment against the risks in Protecting the 
Public Purse: Fighting Fraud Against Local 
Government (2014) and has also undertaken 
horizon scanning of future potential fraud and 
corruption risks. 

Yes.
The fraud risks to the Authority are assessed at 
least annually, and are updated as and when new 
risks arise.
In terms of horizon scanning, internal audit (DAP) 
provide updates on emerging fraud risks and the 
Devon Audit Group also helps to inform officers of 
locally developing issues.
A local network of key contacts also helps to 
identify trends and developments.

3. There is an annual report to the audit 
committee, or equivalent detailed assessment, 
to compare against Fighting Fraud and 
Corruption Locally (FFCL) 2016 and this 
checklist. 

Yes. 
Each year a report is taken to the Audit & 
Governance Committee, reporting the results of a 
self-assessment against the CIPFA code of practice 
on Managing the Risk of Fraud and corruption.

4. There is a counter fraud and corruption 
strategy applying to all aspects of the local 
authority’s business which has been 
communicated throughout the local authority 
and acknowledged by those charged with 
governance. 

Yes.
The Authority has in place an Anti Fraud, 
Corruption Bribery Policy and Strategy.  This was 
updated in February 2017, with next review 
scheduled for February 2019.
The Strategy is taken to, and approved by, the 
Audit & Governance Committee.

5. The local authority has arrangements in place 
that are designed to promote and ensure 
probity and propriety in the conduct of its 
business.

Yes. 
Section 5 of the Strategy sets out various policy 
statements that cover staff, members, partner 
organisations and members of the public, which 
ensure probity and propriety are in place.
However, no system or process can ever be 100% 
secure, and so employee diligence is always 
needed, and this referred to in section 6 
“deterrence and prevention”.
The Council includes anti-bribery clauses in 
contracts with third parties and agents.

Page 42



6. The risks of fraud and corruption are 
specifically considered in the local authority’s 
overall risk management process.

Yes.
A specific fraud and corruption risk entry is 
recorded in the risk register.

7. Counter fraud staff are consulted to fraud-
proof new policies, strategies and initiatives 
across departments and this is reported upon to 
committee.

The Authority does not have a dedicated “counter 
fraud” team and so this role is undertaken by a 
range of officers, including the Service 
Improvement Officer and Internal Audit (DAP.
New policies and strategies are always considered 
in the light of possible fraud and corruption and are 
designed to limit such exposure.

8. Successful cases of proven fraud/corruption 
are routinely publicised to raise awareness. 

Successful cases of proven fraud / corruption are 
reported in the local paper.
In addition, such cases will be referred to in the 
internal newsletter.

9. The local authority has put in place 
arrangements to prevent and detect fraud and 
corruption and a mechanism for ensuring that 
this is effective and is reported to committee. 

All systems are designed to prevent fraud 
occurring. The diligence of management and staff is 
also key in this.
A risk assessment is undertaken of the key risks of 
fraud, and the controls in place to prevent this 
taking place.
The annual Internal Audit plan is prepared taking in 
to account risks, which include fraud risks. Internal 
audit will provide assessment on the effectiveness 
of controls, and test controls to ensure that they 
are being complied with in practice.
The Audit and Governance Committee is provided 
reports on risk, and the results of Internal Audit, 
and this, combined with management assessment 
of controls, is summarised in the Annual 
Governance Statement.
The Strategy at 5.9 refers to “any major instances 
of fraud being reported to the next Audit & 
Governance Committee….”

10. The local authority has put in place 
arrangements for monitoring compliance with 
standards of conduct across the local authority 
covering: 
– codes of conduct including behaviour for 
counter fraud, anti-bribery and corruption 

Yes. 

The Strategy, section 6.9 to 6.14 refers to the code 
of conduct for staff and at 6.15 to 6.17 the code of 
conduct for members.
As expected there is a member’s code of conduct 
that was prepared in 2015.

Page 43



– register of interests A register of member interests is maintained and is 
publicly available on the Councils internet page.

– register of gifts and hospitality. Yes.
A register of gifts and hospitality is maintained, and 
this is published on line.
The Authority is looking to further maximise the 
benefits of ModernGov, which will allow for 
interests, gifts and hospitality to be maintained 
against each member.

11. The local authority undertakes recruitment 
vetting of staff prior to employment by risk 
assessing posts and undertaking the checks 
recommended in FFCL 2016 to prevent 
potentially dishonest employees from being 
appointed. 

TDC have two policies; ‘recruitment’ and 
‘employment screening’ which cover the employee 
vetting.  All offers of employment are subject to 
satisfactory pre employment checks.  
Mandatory checks include :-

 References 
 Verification of employment history
 Verification of professional qualifications 

and memberships 
 Verification of ID , nationality and 

immigration status and right to work in the 
UK 

 Medical clearance

Some posts require additional checks including

 DBS
 Credit checks
 Checks on company directorships held, 

resigned or disqualified from (not routinely 
undertaken)

12. Members and staff are aware of the need to 
make appropriate disclosures of gifts, 
hospitality and business. This is checked by 
auditors and reported to committee. 

Yes.
At the start of each meeting a declaration of 
interests is requested.
The Service Improvement Officer will remind all 
officers and members of the need to declare all 
offers of gifts and hospitality. Such a reminder is 
made in the internal newsletter, around Christmas 
time each year.

13. There is a programme of work to ensure a 
strong counter fraud culture across all 
departments and delivery agents led by counter 
fraud experts. 

There is an annual calendar that supports the staff 
newsletter to ensure that fraud awareness updates 
are provided at least biannually, whistleblowing 
reminders are provided biannually, and gift & 
hospitality reminders are provided yearly.

Page 44



14. There is an independent whistle-blowing 
policy which is monitored for take-up and can 
show that suspicions have been acted upon 
without internal pressure.

Yes.
A separate whistleblowing policy is in place 
updated Oct 2018.
This includes the Policy, employee guide and 
Managers guide.
All such alerts and reports will be monitored for 
intelligence purposes.

15. Contractors and third parties sign up to the 
whistle-blowing policy and there is evidence of 
this. There should be no discrimination against 
whistle-blowers.

At present the whistleblowing policy is aimed at 
employees. The Service Improvement Officer is 
currently looking at the policy to consider how 
both contractors and third parties can be brought 
in to arrangements.

16. Fraud resources are assessed 
proportionately to the risk the local authority 
faces and are adequately resourced.

Since the transfer of benefits counter fraud staff to 
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP), fraud 
resources have been limited.
However, the internal audit provider (DAP) recently 
expanded its service provision by taking on the 
Counter Fraud Team, currently working solely at 
Plymouth. The team has 7 fully trained and 
qualified counter fraud specialists. The Authority 
will look to “call off” resources as and when the 
need arises. 

17. There is an annual fraud plan which is 
agreed by committee and reflects resources 
mapped to risks and arrangements for reporting 
outcomes. This plan covers all areas of the local 
authority’s business and includes activities 
undertaken by contractors and third parties or 
voluntary sector activities.

There is no annual fraud plan as such.
However, there are a range of “work programmes” 
that are prepared each year, including actions 
arising for the Annual Governance Review process, 
Risk Management and Internal Audit.
The elements of each of these various plans 
enables senior management to be assured that 
suitable resources are being allocated to prevent, 
detect and investigate fraud.
However, it should be noted that the current level 
of referrals of fraud and corruption are limited.

18. Statistics are kept and reported by the fraud 
team which cover all areas of activity and 
outcomes. 

The Strategic Improvement Officer, in conjunction 
with the S151 officer, will maintain a record of 
referrals.
However, and as referred to above, there is no 
separate fraud team.

19. Fraud officers have unfettered access to 
premises and documents for the purposes of 
counter fraud investigation. 

As stated above there are no dedicated “fraud 
officers”. 
However, in such instances then such access would 
be granted. (for example if DAP were asked to 
conduct an investigation using their Counter Fraud 
Team, then “full access” would be granted as per 
the service level agreement already in place. 

Page 45



20. There is a programme to publicise fraud and 
corruption cases internally and externally which 
is positive and endorsed by the council’s 
communication team. 

Not a programme as such, but cases will be 
publicised in the local newspaper and via the 
internal newsletter.

21. All allegations of fraud and corruption are 
risk assessed. 

Yes. Each referral or suspicion will be “risk 
assessed” before embarking upon a course of 
action proportionate to the issue and in line with 
Torridge’s “zero tolerance” policy.

22. The fraud and corruption response plan 
covers all areas of counter fraud work: 

 Prevention
 Detection
 Investigation
 Sanctions
 Redress

As mentioned above, there is no response plan as 
such, however the Strategy ensures that each of 
these elements is considered.

23. The fraud response plan is linked to the 
audit plan and is communicated to senior 
management and members. 

See above

24. Asset recovery and civil recovery is 
considered in all cases.

Yes.  Section 7.11 to 7.14 of the Strategy deal with 
Sanctions and Redress.

25. There is a zero tolerance approach to fraud 
and corruption which is always reported to 
committee.

Yes  - there is a “zero tolerance approach to fraud, 
endorsed by the Audit & Governance Committee. 
Instances of fraud and corruption are reported to 
the Audit & Governance Committee. Due to the 
sensitive nature of some instances, this may be in 
summary form.

26. There is a programme of proactive counter 
fraud work which covers risks identified in 
assessment. 

Proactive counter fraud work is delivered in a 
variety of ways each year. Some examples of how 
this is achieved include:-

 Participation in the bi-annual National Fraud 
Initiative (NFI)

 Elements of internal audit work focused on 
controls that may be more susceptible to fraud 
risk

 Work by Service Managers – such as Council Tax 
Single Persons Discount review

27. The fraud team works jointly with other 
enforcement agencies and encourages a 
corporate approach and co-location of 
enforcement activity. 

There is no “fraud team” as such, however early 
referral to the Police or other agencies will be 
considered as part of the risk assessment for each 
referral.

28. The local authority shares data across its 
own departments and between other 
enforcement agencies. 

Yes and as expected.
The main external data sharing is via the NFI

Page 46



29. Prevention measures and projects are 
undertaken using data analytics where possible. 

Yes.
Such examples include making good use of 

 the NFI

 Council Tax - Single persons discount review

30. The local authority actively takes part in the 
National Fraud Initiative (NFI) and promptly 
takes action arising from it. 

Yes.
Data is submitted every two years, with “matches” 
then investigated in accordance with the scoring of 
the match (e.g. higher scored matches reviewed 
first, lowest reviewed last and in accordance with 
resources available.

31. There are professionally trained and 
accredited staff for counter fraud work. If 
auditors undertake counter fraud work they too 
must be trained in this area. 

As mentioned earlier, the Authority does not have a 
counter fraud team. However, the Authority has 
access to, and will make use of, Counter Fraud 
Specialists as and when the need arises.
For example, the Counter Fraud Team of DAP are 
available to assist as and when required.

32. The counter fraud team has adequate 
knowledge in all areas of the local authority or 
is trained in these areas. 

As above.

33. The counter fraud team has access (through 
partnership/other local authorities/or funds to 
buy in) to specialist staff for: 

 Surveillance
 Computer forensics
 Asset recovery
 Financial investigations.

As above.

34. Weaknesses revealed by instances of 
proven fraud and corruption are scrutinised 
carefully and fed back to departments to fraud 
proof systems.

Yes.
The Authority is committed to ongoing and 
continual improvement. Any weaknesses identified 
will be addressed wherever possible, although it 
should be noted that no system can ever be 
considered 100% free from the risk of fraud.

Page 47



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Page 1 of 21

Agenda Item

REPORT OF DAP Partnership Manager
To: Audit & Governance Committee
Subject: Audit Reports Issued to Date
Date: 20th November 2018 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:    To provide a summary of the audit reports issued to date to enable 
members to discuss any matters they wish to raise.
 

1. INTRODUCTION
The Audit & Governance Committee requested a regular summary of the audit reports 
issued to ensure there is opportunity to raise any queries on those reports. 

Where possible Members are encouraged to raise any significant concerns with the 
Service Improvement Officer at the time of issue of the report, however this report gives 
the opportunity for Members as a group to discuss any related matters.

This committee report covers the audit reports issued to date and not previously 
reported. 

2. REPORT
A summary of those reports issued to date and not included in previous committee 
reports is included at Appendix A. 

There are four audits to be reported upon: 
 GDPR Situation Report
 Food Safety
 Council Tax
 Building Control

3. IMPLICATIONS
Legal Implications
None.

Financial Implications
None.

Human Resources Implications
None.

Sustainability Implications
None.

Equality/Diversity
None.

Page 48

Agenda Item 10



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Page 2 of 21

Risk Management
The two key outcomes from an audit are the opinion on the audit subject, which indicates the 
level of assurance that members can take, and the agreed actions to strengthen the control 
framework. Any agreed actions are evaluated against the corporate risk matrix and the audit 
reports include those risks that are medium or high. Low risk or housekeeping matters are 
reported separately and directly to management for them to manage. Progress with 
implementing actions is reported to the Head of Paid Service (or Senior Management Team) 
and to the Audit & Governance committee on a quarterly basis.

 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies
This report complies with the Audit & Governance Committee terms of reference and the Audit 
Procedures Manual. 

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of Audit & Governance, commented “The Internal Audits 
Reports contribute to the Council’s robust governance arrangements.”   

4. CONCLUSIONS
Four reports have been issued since the meeting in July. The GDPR report was a position 
statement with no audit opinion. The opinion for the other audits at the time of publication 
was:

Opinion Audit
‘Good’
(which means minimal risks identified)

Food Safety; 
Council Tax;
Building Control

Opinions range from: High; Good; Improvement Required; Fundamental Weaknesses. 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS
Committee are asked to:

Note the report issued in this reporting period and raise any queries, suggestions or 
proposals relating to the seven internal audits in this report.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Officer - Jenny Wallace; Steve Hearse; Staci Dorey
Councillors - Philip Hackett

Contact Officer: Chris Dobbs

Background Papers: Audit files

Page 49



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Page 3 of 21

Appendix A
GDPR Situation Report

1. Introduction and background

The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) was adopted by the EU in April 2016 and the 
new UK Data Protection Act (DPA) 2018 writes the majority of the EU regulation into UK law, as 
well as introducing some additional requirements. The GDPR updates and harmonises data 
privacy within the EU and the DPA 2018 ensures that the regulatory standards are mirrored 
within the UK. 

The Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) has prepared guidance and checklists to assist 
organisations as they transition from meeting the requirements of the current legislation to 
that of the GDPR/Data Protection Bill. 

In 2016 guidance was provided by the ICO to all DPO’s to help them prepare for the significant 
Data Protection legislative changes due in May 2018. Whilst most other Council’s set up project 
teams during 2017 to tackle the significant work activities involved in compiling information 
asset registers etc., this did not happen at Torridge. We were informed by management that in 
the autumn of 2017 the Governance Team, Zurich Insurance, and DAP all raised concerns to 
SMT about the increasing likelihood that Torridge would not be sufficiently prepared for the 
onset of GDPR. On each occasion the Senior Solicitor gave assurances to SMT that he had 
everything in hand and that Torridge would be ready on time. 

Management have since confirmed that in January 2018 the Senior Solicitor announced to SMT 
that there was a great deal of work to be done before May 2018 and he would require additional 
resources to ensure that Torridge would be compliant with the new legislation. Once SMT had 
been alerted to the need for more resources, a project officer and an apprentice were allocated 
to the task of collating the basic information but once collated, no further guidance was given by 
the Senior Solicitor.  Additional resource was also sought from Devon Audit Partnership to 
support the Senior Solicitor. 

Many of the new DPA’s fundamental principles and requirements have carried over from the 
existing Data Protection Act (DPA) whilst consolidating principles from eight to six. If the Council 
currently complies properly with the existing legislation then most of its approach to compliance 
will remain valid under the GDPR.
Organisations must now ensure effective procedures are in place and designate a Data 
Protection Officer to meet new accountability requirements. However, everyone responsible for 
using personal data within an organisation has to follow strict rules defined by the six ‘data 
protection principles’. It is an organisational responsibility to ensure that staff make sure that 
information is:

 Used fairly, lawfully and transparently
 Used for specified, explicit purposes
 Used in a way that is adequate, relevant and limited to only what is necessary
 Accurate and, where necessary, kept up to date
 Kept for no longer than is necessary
 Handled in a way that ensures appropriate security, including protection against unlawful 

or unauthorised processing, access, loss, destruction or damage

The level of financial penalty for serious breaches has been vastly increased and the new laws 
allow for fines of up to £17 million or 4% of turnover.
Torridge officers completed an initial assessment of work required (in October 2017) resulting in 
a GDPR Top 10 requirements list and an action plan; support to help complete these actions 
has been provided by Devon Audit Partnership (DAP).   

Page 50



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Page 4 of 21

2. Scope and objectives (Summarised)

To provide the Council with a situation report as to the progress made towards fulfilling the 
requirements of the new Data Protection Act 2018 (also known as GDPR). 

3. Executive Summary

The GDPR has highlighted the need for an organisational “champion” to promote and embed 
good Data Protection arrangements. There have been changes in structure at Torridge that 
have meant that the “champion” role has recently changed hands and Data Protection 
knowledge and skills are not as embedded as expected. Such a champion has now been 
identified, and, once fully up to speed, this officer will help to protect the Council from risks 
associated with poor data protection, including financial penalty and reputational damage. 
Weaknesses in other areas of Information Governance should also be understood in order to 
limit operational inefficiencies and costs.

The incumbent Data Protection Officer (DPO) recently left the Council and the DPO role has 
now been assigned pending recruitment of a replacement to the Human Resources (HR) 
Manager on a temporary basis. Although we recognise that the Council has taken swift action to 
nominate a new officer for the role, the change does present challenges and, potentially, could 
present risks.  It will take time for the HR Manager to bring her knowledge up to speed with 
requirements and the specific needs of the GDPR. 

It is expected that the DPO will provide expertise and leadership to those within the organisation 
who support the information governance structures including management, Information Asset 
Owners (IAO) and those who administer processes that support the DPA. If the DPO lacks skills 
and experience then this can limit an organisations ability to comply with the DPA as there will 
(at least in the short term) be a deficit in knowledge to provide the leadership necessary to 
embed a strong culture and effective process.

In addition to, and in support of the DPO, best practice is for organisations to have staff with a 
heightened knowledge of the DPA, often referred to as “Information Lead Officers”. Going 
forward, the identification of suitable officers to undertake such roles will be of advantage. When 
the Senior Solicitor took up his post, there was a team of DP Leads from each of the main 
service areas. This group no longer exists.

Having commenced work to prepare for the new data protection laws, the Council has not 
completed the process and may need to commit further resources to address this. Work had 
stalled prior to  the incumbent DPO leaving the Council, and only limited work has been 
undertaken during the eight-week period since DAP completed their support work. This has 
been recognised by senior management, but there remains a need to further create and 
develop internal knowledge and capability.

There are some existing information governance weaknesses that will need to be addressed as 
part of the journey to embed robust information management processes and culture. For 
example, the Council’s Retention Schedule (created in 1993), which assists with meeting two of 
the six DPA Principles will require an update and refresh to demonstrate compliance with the 
Data Protection Act. There is a risk that such weaknesses could be exposed by a Subject 
Access Request.

In order to manage information assets in accord with the DPA, the Council are required to 
document what personal data is held, where it came from, and who it is shared with. Work to 
conduct an audit of the Council’s information assets and fully populate a corporate Information 
Asset Register (IAR) is largely incomplete. Progress on this task has been slow and there is a 
need to prioritise and allocate resources to get this time-consuming work done. Completion of 
the IAR gives the Council visibility to manage its information assets in an effective and 
compliant way and adds value to the management of retention periods, third party data sharing, 
software suppliers and Privacy Notices. Page 51



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Page 5 of 21

It is pleasing to report that training has been provided to staff from external subject experts and 
an eLearning course is also pending using the excellent KnowB4 training platform, recently 
subscribed to by the Council. Periodic training and education initiatives are required to create a 
culture of instinctive awareness and a collaborative corporate approach. Internal Audit continue 
to advocate utilising the skills within ICT, Human Resources (HR), Democratic Support and that 
it is good practice to include key data protection education within any periodic information 
security initiatives.

Good work has been undertaken to demonstrate visible progress in the publishing of a 
corporate Privacy Statement and some service specific ones, all of which are available the 
Council’s website and in paper form. As such, the Council currently fulfils the ICO’s 
expectations. Work is required to ensure that Privacy Statements are written and available for 
all service areas and that those already produced are further refined in order to identify the most 
granular legal basis for processing, the latter not being a priority.

Fulfilment of the Council’s legal obligations under the DPA is not limited to the existence of 
satisfactory policies and associated documentation, which are now in place. This summary 
does not detail other operational requirements that may not be currently of a satisfactory 
standard, but are either considered to be too immature to review or of lower risk at this moment 
in time. However, these are recognised within a list of findings and recommended actions 
detailed within Section 4 below.

4. Management Response

The recommendations suggest progress has been slow and there is still much to be done.  
Significant work is underway to address the concerns and issues raised in the report. Since the 
departure of the previous DPO the following has been arranged:

 Support from DAP for a further 25 days commencing 25 September;
 Rollout of on line training for all staff and councillors w/c 24 September;
 Further face to face training arranged as a ‘mop up’ for those previously unable to attend 

– this will include Councillors;
 HR Manager and Legal Services Manager to attend certificated DPO training early 

December.
In addition, meetings have been arranged with all operational managers and their teams to 
assess their current compliance and what further assistance can be given to ensure they meet 
the requirements of GDPR as soon as practically possible.

Sarah Ayres, HR Manager and DPO

Page 52



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Page 6 of 21

Summary of Actions

5.1 Strategic & Management
Finding Recommendation

5.1.1 The ICO states that “The DPO must be independent, an expert in data 
protection, adequately resourced, and report to the highest management level”.
The Council appointed the Senior Solicitor as the designated DPO for TDC. He 
was experienced in this area and had relevant previous work experience relating 
to data protection, including in his most recent position prior to joining TDC.
The Senior Solicitor has left the Authority and their role as DPO has been 
temporarily designated to the HR Manager until a replacement DPO has been 
recruited. It will take time for the HR Manager to learn the role, and, whilst this 
takes place, support is being given from the Legal Services Manager and SMT 
but there is a risk that the requirements of the DPA may not be met
The risks that we identified at the time of the audit include:

 The HR Manager does not yet possess the appropriate knowledge or skill 
sets to fully perform the role;

 The officer is yet to receive specialised training in the DPA or the role of 
the DPO;

 In the role, the officer needs to be provided with a direct report to the 
highest level of management (the Chief Executive);

 The Council needs to ensure that other tasks or duties they assign to 
them do not result in a conflict of interests with their role as a DPO.

Link to ICO DPO Guide/ Accountability & Governance/ Data Protection Officer:  
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-
regulation-gdpr/accountability-and-governance/data-protection-officers/ 

The Council should ensure that the current DPO is provided 
with the skills and knowledge that they will need to carry out 
this role. 

Where gaps (short, medium and / or longer term) are 
identified, suitable remedy will need to be sought. 

P
age 53

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/accountability-and-governance/data-protection-officers/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/accountability-and-governance/data-protection-officers/


Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Page 7 of 21

5.1.2 At the time of the audit the Council did not fully demonstrate the required 
in-house expertise in respect of the DPA and Information Governance in 
general. 
The provision of a minimal amount of additional resources from DAP will assist 
in the short term, but does not create ongoing in-house skills or capacity.

Going forward the HR Manager, as DPO, will need to 
assess and ensure that specific roles and resources to 
provide baseline support for administering DPA 
requirements, and IG in general, are in place. Core tasks 
include:

 Incident and Breach management;
 Completing and maintaining the IAR;
 Maintaining the Retention Schedule;
 Maintaining and refining Privacy Notices;
 Administering Subject Access Requests;
 Processing Subject Access Requests and other DPA 

‘rights’.
In addition, there is a need to have staff with heightened 
knowledge of DPA processes and procedures to ensure that 
sufficient knowledge exists within individual service areas. 
Known as Information Lead Officers (ILO’s), these staff are 
a supplementary resource to safeguard good practice and 
compliance.
The Council should consider informally benchmarking 
Councils of a similar size and demographic to ascertain what 
resources exist within similar organisations to administer the 
requirements of the DPA and Information Governance in 
general.
As part of the second phase of DAP resources being 
provided, a plan to share knowledge and expertise with TDC 
staff should be put in place to assist with creating sufficient 
capacity to administer their own data protection 
responsibilities from 1st April 2019.

P
age 54



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Page 8 of 21

5.1.3. Progress to date has been slow, and stalled over the summer period. 
Suitable resources need to be identified and allocated on a timely and 
sustainable basis to ensure that the requirements of the DPA can be fulfilled. 
The use of DAP to provide further resources will assist, but may not fully 
address this.

Identification of the baseline tasks required to administer 
DPA and associated Information Governance tasks will help 
in determining resource requirements and the estimated 
costs in creating a sustainable model.

5.1.4 The ICO would not be expecting that organisations would have been 
wholly compliant with the DPA by 1st April 2018. However, they will look for ever 
increasing compliance and have expectancy that organisations will be able to 
demonstrate a maturing and effective framework.

Management should complete their own “self-assessment” 
of arrangements at a suitable time, say December 2018.
This could / should be supported by a formal internal audit 
review at the beginning of 2019/20 in order to provide an 
assurance opinion as to how the Council are fulfilling their 
data protection requirements.

P
age 55



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Page 9 of 21

Food Safety – Good Opinion (good standard rating on 4/7 risk areas)

Introduction 
The Food and Safety Team have a duty to protect the public by enforcing Food Safety and Health and 
Safety regulations in respect of commercial premises within the Torridge area. The team publish the 
results inspections on a regular basis and provide advice to businesses on a wide range of subjects.

A recent Which report using data from the Food Standards Agency shows that for 2016-17 (the most 
recent data available), the Torridge area was in the top 25% with over 90% of medium/high risk 
premises being assessed as compliant.

Activities carried out in respect of food safety include:
 Inspecting food premises;
 Investigating food complaints and monitoring actions;
 Taking food samples from commercial food premises;
 Promoting good health, nutrition and hygiene;
 Providing general food advice
 Producing regular returns to the Food Standards Agency
 Investigating cases of infectious diseases and cases of food poisoning

Activities carried out in respect of Health and Safety include:
 Health and safety at work enforcement;
 Investigating health & safety complaints and workplace accidents related to commercial premises.

The previous Internal Audit of this area was conducted in 2010, at which time an assurance level of 
Satisfactory was given.

A subsequent audit was undertaken in 2015 by the Food Standards Agency and subsequent action plan 
fully implemented (per letter from FSA dated 16/12/2015).

Assurance Opinion on Risks Covered
 

Level of Assurance RAG 
Rating

1 – Legal Action against the Authority if it fails to comply 
with statutory duties

Good Standard

2 – Public health impacted if poor working practices are 
employed 

Improvements Required

3 – Public health impacted due to lack of emergency 
planning

Improvements Required

4 – Court actions may fail if evidence gathering and 
handling is not robust

Good Standard

5 – Authority may suffer reputational damage Good Standard  

6 – Financial penalties may be imposed due to non 
compliance with GDPR

Improvements Required  

7 – If performance monitoring is ineffective the quality of 
service may be impacted

Good Standard  

These areas / risks combine to provide the overall audit assurance opinion. Definitions of the assurance opinion ratings can 
be found in the Appendices. The observations and findings in relation to each of these areas has been discussed with 
management, see the "Detailed Audit Observations And Action Plan" appendix A. This appendix records the action plan 
agreed by management to enhance the internal control framework and mitigate identified risks where agreed 

Page 56



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Page 10 of 21

Executive Summary 

Regulatory Framework and Procedures
The work of the team is underpinned by various legislation such as the Food Safety Act 1990; Food 
Code of Practice; and Framework Agreement on Local Authority Food Law Enforcement (FALAFLE). 
The team demonstrated a good awareness of this overarching framework and had the necessary 
documents available for reference.

A Food Safety Service Plan was found to be in place and had been drawn up in the correct format as 
outlined in the FALAFLE. The plan requires final sign off.

Documented procedures were found to be in place for Health and Safety and Food Safety, although 
some (Health and Safety) are stored using an online web based system (RE-AMS) whilst others (Food 
Safety) are held within the corporate network. Food safety procedures appeared comprehensive and 
well maintained.

One such procedure, FS12, covers ‘Investigation and Control of Food Poisoning Outbreaks’ and as such 
may be considered the emergency response procedure. The procedure is relatively long and detailed; 
however we note that it refers to a separate Devon wide plan that could not be located.

Knowledge Skills and Experience of Staff
Inspecting officers should have an in depth knowledge of their areas of work. Job profiles obtained from 
the HR team included such requirements as ‘essential’. Inspecting officers were able to provide 
evidence of ongoing CPD which is necessary for their registrations with the Environmental Health 
Registration Board (EHRB).

Annual appraisals for the team were also found to be in place and up to date, providing staff and 
managers with the opportunity to discuss personal development as well as potential obstacles to service 
improvement.

Officer Authorisations
A scheme of delegation was found to be in place in relation to approving officers to undertake specific 
functions such as the issuing of enforcement notices, for which they have a suitable degree of training 
and experience. The Council’s constitution states these officers are to be approved by the Head of Paid 
Service, however documentary evidence was provided to show that this ability to authorise officers has 
been further delegated to the Service Manager. We reviewed the actual authorisations and found that in 
all cases they had been signed off in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation.

Inspection Regime
The team operate Food Safety inspections according to prescribed timescales which are set out in the 
Food Law Code of Practice. A risk based approach is implemented whereby each premise is assessed 
based on factors including type of food/method of processing/no of consumers at risk. The overall 
intervention score then determines the frequency of inspection, which can be as frequent as every six 
months.

From discussion, and from our sample testing, we note that although many planned inspections do take 
place promptly, there are occasions where prescribed timescales are not met. Delays have occurred 
due to staffing pressures (see paragraph below) along with an exceptionally busy period earlier this 
year.

Health and Safety inspections are not conducted proactively, unless as part of a scheduled Food Safety 
inspection. For non-food business premises, Health and Safety activities are undertaken reactively. This 
is understood to be common practice within Local Authorities. We confirmed that the team monitor the 
online RIDDOR database regularly and in this way identify potential incidents that may require 

Page 57



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Page 11 of 21

intervention. During the current year, the team have been heavily involved in undertaking a complex 
investigation into a widely publicised death by drowning, which remains ongoing. The case has had a 
significant impact on team resources and contributed to the aforementioned delays in Food Safety 
inspections.

Contraventions
From discussions and sample testing we confirmed that most, if not all, inspections result in reportable 
findings. These are conveyed to the business as either a mandatory requirement (where there is a 
breach of the legislation) or as a recommendation (where it is considered good practice). These findings 
are recorded using a standard Food Safety Intervention Report form, copies of which are scanned to the 
network and the Uniform system to ensure a permanent record is held.

Serious contraventions for Food Safety are relatively rare and where these occur, the Authority has 
taken the approach of encouraging the business to sign a voluntary closure order rather than seeking a 
court order for closure. This maintains goodwill between all parties and avoids potential costs and delays 
that may otherwise be necessary.

Premises Database
The Authority uses the ‘IDOX Uniform’ software platform for a number of services including planning, 
building control and environmental health. The software is well established and the provider is a major 
supplier to the public sector. Full details of all food premises are recorded along with inspection details, 
details of any notices issued, the total intervention score applicable and the risk rating. Key documents, 
such as Inspection Notes and Intervention Reports, are also attached to the record, although not in all 
instances for our test sample.

Data Protection
Access to the IDOX Uniform system is restricted to authorised staff and is linked to their network logon. 
Users are assigned a role within the system that restricts which modules they are able to access along 
with whether they have read only or update access.

We confirmed that IDOX Uniform data along with network files and folders used by the team are 
included within the scheduled data backups carried out automatically by the IT Service. Evidence was 
provided that shows a recent backup was successful.

The team have not yet had the opportunity to complete relevant entries within the Information Asset 
Register or to develop the Service Specific Privacy Notices required under GDPR, although it is noted 
that this is due to factors outside of the team’s control.

Service Costs
From discussion with the Environmental Health and Community Safety Manager we determined that the 
team is adequately resourced and fully staffed, with no significant backlogs of work.

We extracted information from the Authority’s financial systems to determine how net service costs for 
the Food and Safety team have changed over time. The resulting figures; presented in the two graphs 
below, show that there have been fluctuations in net costs, with the overall trend in costs being 
downwards, despite a reduction in income.

From discussion with the accountancy team, we determined that the fluctuations have occurred as a 
result of factors including the way in which support service recharges have been allocated, changes in 
accommodation costs linked to the transformation programme and a major staff restructure and changes 
in staffing levels.

Page 58



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Page 12 of 21

The drop in miscellaneous income was explained as being due to the cessation of training courses 
which had previously been offered by the Authority to local businesses. The officer involved in delivering 
these courses left during the aforementioned restructure.

Future generation of income may be possible from the provision of consultancy services for food 
businesses where TDC are the ‘Primary Authority’. Although no businesses currently fall into this 
category this is an area that the Service Manager is monitoring. 

The FSA are currently undertaking a major review of the Food Safety inspection regime. It is anticipated 
that this may result in a more light touch approach for lower risk premises. This could free up officer time 
to enable TDC to undertake a primary authority role for smaller business that may have branches in 
other areas.

    

Fees and Charges
We confirmed that fees and charges for the team are updated annually by the Service Manager and 
subsequently approved by members, having last occurred at the Community and Resources Meeting of 
22 January 2018, (minute 96 refers). Fees are set locally and were found to be similar to those in a 
neighbouring Authority.

We confirmed that income and expenditure for the current year had, for our test sample, been correctly 
coded within the general ledger using logical cost centre and account codes.

Performance Monitoring
A number of performance indicators have been set up to enable management to monitor and assess the 
performance of the service. For our testing we considered LE310-Number of Primary Food Inspections. 
We confirmed that the information entered to the SPAR.net system for the current year to July matched 
that within the underlying reports and was therefore an accurate reflection.

Below is a chart showing how the numbers of visits per year has changed over the last five years. The 
chart shows a small degree of fluctuations which reflects the varying numbers of premises that have a 
scheduled visit from year to year. 

Page 59



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Page 13 of 21

Food Standards Agency Returns
The Authority is required to submit an annual return to the FSA which is uploaded via an online portal 
and then signed off by the Service Manager by 31 May.
We verified that the Torridge data for 2017-18 had been uploaded and appeared within the interim report 
(showing LA’s who had uploaded by the May deadline).

We confirmed that the uploaded data is subject to verification and validation checks but found that timing 
differences between the uploaded data and subsequent reports used to cross check, made these cross 
checks less straightforward.

Issues for the Annual Governance Statement 
The evidence obtained in internal audit reviews can identify issues in respect of risk management, 
systems and controls that may be relevant to the Annual Governance Statement. 

No issues were identified that require disclosure within the Annual Governance Statement.

Page 60



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Page 14 of 21

Council Tax – Good Opinion (good standard rating on 7/9 risk areas)

Introduction 
The Council Tax was created by the Finance Act 1992 and came into operation on 1st April 1993. The 
act requires that all domestic properties be placed in one of 8 bands, referenced A to H, according to 
values given them by the Listing Officer, an appointee of The Commissioners of the Inland Revenue, 
and based on market values as at 1st April 1991. The Council Tax contributes to the cost of services 
provided by Torridge District Council, Devon County Council, Devon and Cornwall Police Authority, 
Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Authority as well as local Parish & Town Councils. 

There are 32,584 banded properties in the district, of which around 25,000 are classed as chargeable 
dwellings (taking account of discounts, exemptions, disabled relief and empty properties). Torridge 
District Council is responsible for the collection of Council Tax. The Council Tax System involves 
maintaining a database of eligible dwellings, which are banded based on valuations performed by the 
Valuation Office Agency (VOA), an executive agency of HM Revenues & Customs (HMRC).

As the Charging Authority, Torridge District Council is responsible for the accurate and timely billing and 
collection of the tax and ensuring that accurate and timely precept payments are made during the 
financial year. A further aim is to take correct action to maximise recovery of Council Tax. 

The previous audit of this area was conducted in October 2017, at which time an assurance level of 
Good was given.

Assurance Opinion on Risks Covered
 

Level of 
Assurance

Direction 
of travel

1 – Non-compliance with legislation in the timely setting of the Council 
Tax resulting in significant cash flow issues 

High Standard

2 – Non-compliance with legislation in applying individual property 
bands according to instructions received from the Valuation Office.

High Standard

3 – May fail to collect the income properly due to the Authority and 
other precept bodies through poor management of the discounts and 
exemptions (These should be accurate, complete and timely).

Good 
Standard

4 – Reputational damage from failing to properly account for income 
collected from taxpayers & to reconcile it to other Council systems.

High Standard

5 –Not dealing promptly with taxpayer’s communications with the 
Authority and changes in their circumstances: officer’s time may be 
wasted and reputational damage for the Authority.

Good 
Standard  

6 – Financial risk if income due to the Authority is not collected 
because of poor management of collection of debts.

High Standard

7 – Fail to comply with Council Policies & Financial procedures in 
efficiently processing/authorising write-offs: officer time may be wasted; 
debts may remain on the accounts when not economical to pursue. 

Good 
Standard  

8 – Failing to keep data secure and up to date resulting in fines under 
GDPR legislation 

High Standard

 
9 – Reputational damage arising from failing to pay other precept 
bodies correctly and on time.

High Standard

 

Page 61



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Page 15 of 21

Executive Summary 
Our review of the Council Tax system was completed in October 2018. The work has included 
consideration of whether Full Council has approved Council Tax increases by mid February; whether 
precept payments are timely and accurate; that property bands are reconciled between the Council Tax 
database and the Valuation List; that Council Tax bills are issued promptly and calculated correctly; that 
the application of discounts and exemptions is controlled; that income received by various methods is 
promptly and accurately processed; that collection rates are regularly monitored and recovery processes 
effective; that system transactions are regularly reconciled; and that system security is applied to reduce 
the risk of data breaches occurring.   

There have been no major changes to the Council Tax systems and processes at the time of writing and 
the Team Leader who was appointed prior to the previous audit has established good routines and built 
on the effective team procedures, with most records now being digital for example.  

There is a potential change being considered by Government for next year whereby the premium 
applied to empty properties could increase from a 50% premium to 100% premium, and then see further 
increases in subsequent years. The intention being to encourage owners to bring properties back into 
use.  

An empty homes review is being undertaken independently by “Capacity Grid” over a period of six 
weeks. At the time of the audit progress was good, with the project being at the halfway point. Effective 
controls have been adopted in sharing the data, with some 1,622 properties included in the review. It is 
noted that the review has so far identified less than 0.25% of those cases reviewed which were found to 
be occupied (4 properties). 

We were asked to review the processes for taking write offs valued over £5k to Committee to ascertain 
whether the full recovery procedures had been complied with and if there were more effective means of 
securing member approval of write offs:  A recent Community & Resources (C&R) Committee report in 
August was referred back to officers for further action on the five cases submitted. Recommendations 
are made to strengthen the reporting process.

Well Managed Risks
We found the following risks were well managed with controls in place and operating effectively to 
mitigate the risks:

Risk Controls
R1.  Council Tax amounts are set and approved by members by 11th March in the year prior 

to the financial year
R2.  The Academy system is reconciled to the valuation list on a regular basis  

 The Academy system is updated with new Council Tax bandings in a timely and accurate 
manner. Changes to system parameters are verified and checked

R4.  The Academy Council Tax system is regularly reconciled to the Cash Receipting system 
(Capita), the Council Tax Benefits system (Academy) and the General Ledger.

 The cash payments suspense accounts are reviewed and cleared on a regular basis
 Cash Receipting procedures ensure all income is promptly and accurately posted through 

the cash receipting system to Academy
R6.  Collection rates are reviewed and arrears are pursued according to policy

 Non payers are reviewed on a monthly basis
R8.  Access to IT systems are adequately controlled and monitored
R9.  Precepts are paid correctly and on time

Risks which may be subject to change or where controls could be strengthened
We found the following risks have some effective controls in place but could be further mitigated:

Page 62



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Page 16 of 21

Risk Controls working effectively Areas for strengthening and for which further 
detail and recommendations are set out in App A

R3.  Calculations of Council Tax 
liability are accurate & timely & 
there is a reasonableness check 
on the bills produced

 System Parameters are verified 
to ensure discounts & 
exemptions are correctly set up 
prior to annual billing.

 The NFI data matching exercise 
is undertaken every two years to 
identify cases where Single 
Person Discount (SPD) is no 
longer applicable or children 
have become 18 years old

 Reviews & evidence to support 
discounts & exemptions were 
found to be adequate & 
sufficiently up to date with the 
exception being the Single 
Person Discounts. 

 Properties are inspected where 
relevant.

 Office procedures & guidance is 
kept up to date.

 Financial Penalties: No financial penalties have 
been applied where customers fail to provide the 
information requested. Whilst the Policy to apply 
penalties has been approved by Members there 
have been no warnings added to correspondence 
to alert tax payers that penalties may be incurred if 
they fail to provide the information requested.

 Single Person Discount (SPD) Reviews: There 
has been no review of ongoing entitlement to SPD 
for the past two years, however the previous 
declarations are still on record & these included the 
requirement for the taxpayer to notify the Authority 
of any change in their circumstances. This can 
involve a significant cost and staff resource and 
management are in discussions with the audit / 
investigation team about undertaking a more 
efficient type of review at present. We understand a 
review of SPD should occur in the very near future.

 Proposed legislation for increases in 
discretionary premiums: Due to delays in 
progressing the legislation through government 
there may be only a small window of time for the 
Council to decide on whether to adopt an increase 
in discretionary premiums or changes to other 
discretionary discounts. They will need a full 
understanding of the risks and outcomes of their 
decision in order to achieve consensus at Council 
or the opportunity for changes for 2019/20 will be 
lost. Arrangements are being made by 
management for this.

R5.  There is an automated update of 
the amount of Council Tax 
Support on the Benefit system 
with the Council Tax system. 
There is also a monthly 
reconciliation of the amount of 
Council Tax Support shown on 
the Benefits system with the 
amount recorded on the Council 
Tax system. 

 Performance monitoring is 
undertaken on a monthly basis to 
record the caseload dealt with by 
each officer. The quantity of 
cases dealt with by the team has 
increased by 5% over the past 
18 months.

 Staff resources: At the time of the audit there was 
an approved team of 8 in Council Tax (6.5 officers 
& 1.5 visiting officers). This has increased from 7.5 
as a vacant post has recently been increased from 
part time to full time. However that post has been 
vacant since July 2018 and will not be filled until 
January 2019. A further member of the team has 
just gone on longer term sick leave. Meaning that in 
practical terms they are operating on 4.5 officers 
plus 1.5 VOs for the next 2-3 months.

 Whilst testing elsewhere has shown the historic 
performance has been acceptable, there is a 
concern that current standards may not be 
maintained. The performance monitoring also 
shows there has been considerable staff turnover 
since April 2017, with 6 team members leaving (3 
part time & 3 full time). There has been a variety of 
reasons for the departures but it now leaves a 
substantial resource gap.

Page 63



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Page 17 of 21

R7.  Write-offs are made in 
accordance with correct 
procedures (Policies & Financial 
procedures

 There is a scheme of delegation 
setting out which officers are 
empowered to write off debts to a 
maximum value, with those over 
£5k being considered by 
Community & Resources 
Committee

 In-depth case history knowledge, lack of 
explanation & last minute challenges by 
Members during the Meeting: In regard to the 
write off report presented to C&R Committee in 
August 2018 we noted that the officer who wrote 
the report & had in-depth knowledge of the case 
histories did not present the report. The report itself 
was comprehensive. A review of the case histories 
showed that procedures had been followed & each 
case had been persistently pursued over several 
years. In two cases there was some interruption to 
recovery processes however this did not impact on 
the outcomes. The officers at Committee did not 
have sufficient information at their finger tips to 
explain or rebut the queries raised by Members. 
The report does not set out the cost /benefit of 
writing off the debt where the cost of further action 
exceeds what would be recovered. 

Previous recommendations have been implemented.
We verified that all previous recommendations had been implemented.

Issues for the Annual Governance Statement 
The evidence obtained in internal audit reviews can identify issues in respect of risk management, 
systems and controls that may be relevant to the Annual Governance Statement. 

No issues were identified that require disclosure within the Annual Governance Statement.

Page 64



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Page 18 of 21

Building Control – Good Opinion (good standard rating on 8/9 risk areas)

Introduction 
Builders and developers are required under the Building Act 1984 and subsequent Building Regulations 
to obtain building control approval under relevant circumstances. This is intended to provide 
independent assurance that Building Regulations have been complied with. 

Building Control ensures the health and safety of people in and around buildings, the conservation of 
fuel and energy, and access needs. It protects the public by ensuring the legal requirements for building 
design and construction are complied with and ensures that the building regulations are being enforced 
in Torridge. These standards are enforced through the assessment of plans and site inspection by the 
Building Control Surveyors, the issuing of Certificates of Completion, and carrying out formal 
enforcement action if required.

The Building Control team is also responsible for providing specialist advice in the following areas: 
demolitions, dangerous buildings, fire escape requirements, drainage, structural engineering, and 
access for people with disabilities.  

The Building Control team is based at Riverside and consists of three Building Control Surveyors plus 
one temporary, part time Surveyor (two days per week), one Technical Support Officer and one Support 
Assistant.

The previous audit of this area was conducted in 2015, at which time an assurance level of Satisfactory 
was given. 

Assurance Opinion on Risks Covered
 

Level of 
Assurance

Direction 
of travel

1 – Failure to comply with legislation or Council policies. High 
Standard

2 – Unauthorised or inappropriate fees are charged. There is no 
record of when monies have been received / banked.

Good 
Standard

3 – Incomplete, inconsistent or inaccurate applications. High 
Standard

4 – Applications processed incorrectly, inappropriate advice is given, 
inspections are not carried out at all or to the appropriate standard, 
or there are unnecessary delays in completing inspections.

Good 
Standard

5 – Contraventions of building regulations reported by the public are 
not responded to. Emergency calls in relation to dangerous 
structures etc. are not responded to. Buildings may fall into disrepair 
or collapse leading to injury or death.

High 
Standard

 

6 – Building works are in breach of planning conditions. Building 
construction or alteration is carried out without the 
knowledge/approval of the authority.

High 
Standard

7 – Business is lost because competitors undercut the Authority 
and/or offer a service that is perceived by customers as better. 

High 
Standard

 
8 – The general public are unaware of the service provided and/or 
their responsibilities in terms of building regulations.

High 
Standard

 
9 – Unauthorised access to data or building regulation applications 
are lost or stolen.

High 
Standard

 

Page 65



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Page 19 of 21

Executive Summary 
Our review of the Building Control system was completed in October 2018. The work has included 
consideration of whether the service; is operated in accordance with legislation and in accordance with 
Council policies, provides an effective service to the public, ensures appropriate fees and charges are 
levied, records associated income and expenditure items  accurately in the Authority’s accounts, 
ensures security arrangements ensure information cannot be accessed or corrupted by unauthorised 
persons and officers are adequately trained and qualified in their required duties.

There have been significant developments within the Building Control systems and processes since the 
previous audit with online applications and online payments (both through the I Apply facility), use of 
iPads and ‘phone apps for the Surveyors and with the team now operating a substantially paperless 
office. There have also been staff changes, with the number of surveyors reduced from 4 to 3 plus a 
temporary part time post (0.4 FTE) and with one of the support roles being enhanced, with responsibility 
for developing the service delivery further.

Well Managed Risks
We found the following risks were well managed with controls in place and operating effectively to 
mitigate the risks:

Risk Controls
R1.  Officers are fully conversant with current legislation and Council policies in relation to Building 

Control.
R3.  All applications are on official forms, show the date received, and are thoroughly checked 

before processing. The online application process has meant forms are more effectively 
checked at the point of input of information and cannot be submitted if required fields haven’t 
been completed. 

 Officers are fully trained and experienced in their designated roles
R5.  Potential contraventions can be and are reported by the public, other officers and members 

or anonymously. They are recorded on IDOX and the Surveyors assess what is required. 
 Inspections are carried out as deemed necessary and the party concerned is required to 

undertake and evidence remedial actions
 Emergency calls can be received 24 hours a day, however the nature of the Building Control 

role very rarely requires immediate attendance and therefore the Standby Officer contacts the 
Planning & Economy Manager and the details are passed on. This allows Surveyors to 
respond within office hours.  

R6.  Breaches occur fairly frequently but are dealt with without recourse to formal notices 
wherever possible. 

 Completion certificates are only issued once the team are satisfied that all outstanding issues 
are resolved. 

R7.  The team maintain an awareness of competitors and use performance measures to monitor 
market share and customer satisfaction.

R8.  The service provided is publicised through a variety of means all of which are considered 
cost-effective: promotional leaflets, the website, Holsworthy & Woolsery Shows are attended 
with a small range of LABC (Local Authority Building Control) promotional goods, several 
seminars have been held for agents on technical matters which were well attended, and the 
surveyors are recommending good developments for the LABC awards each year. Further 
similar marketing is planned with leaflets to be shared with builders’ merchants and LABC 
banners being applied on building developments. 

R9.  Access to the IDOX system and the Data Management System (DMS) is restricted to 
authorised officers. 

 Most records are held electronically with any paper copies destroyed promptly after scanning. 
 Daily backups are taken of the databases and the few remaining manual files are held in a 

storage cupboard accessible only to staff.

Page 66



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Page 20 of 21

Risks which may be subject to change or where controls could be strengthened
We found the following risks have some effective controls in place but could be further mitigated:

Risk Controls working effectively Areas for strengthening and for which further detail 
and recommendations are set out in Appendix A

R2.  Fees and Charges are set and 
published:

     Senior management have 
delegated powers to approve 
Building Control fees. The 
Authority has an up to date table of 
fees and charges which is 
published on its website

 A receipt is issued for all 
payments received

 All financial transactions are 
recorded accurately, completely 
and promptly in both IDOX and 
the General Ledger (GL): Some 
of the online payments are 
recorded in the GL as a total which 
makes reconciliation procedures 
more complex

 Regular reconciliations of cash (and refunds) 
between IDOX and the GL: at the time of the audit 
these had not taken place since the senior surveyor 
retired however following the recent administration 
staff changes and with further training & support 
from the Accountancy team this is being addressed 
as a matter of priority and was well underway at the 
time of concluding the audit.

 Routing of E-Payments: one telephone payment in 
the sample of 20 payments tested could not be 
found in the General Ledger. Further investigation is 
being undertaken and action will be taken to 
strengthen controls if there has been a failure.

R4.  Application processing was 
effective and timely overall, and 
testing showed the random sample 
of applications tested had 
decisions made within the 
prescribed timescales

 Appropriate advice is given: the 
Authority’s Surveyors have many 
years experience and are 
professionally qualified

 Inspections are carried out 
promptly: they are usually by 
appointment following a request 
from the applicant, although 
random inspections may be 
undertaken as well.

 Correct fees were paid: whilst 
most fees can be taken directly 
from the published fees table, for 
more complex applications the 
Surveyor will calculate the fee 
based on the size and type of 
build. This is emailed promptly to 
the applicant to enable the 
application to be submitted.

 Invoice raising after first inspection – Full Plans 
fees are in two parts: the initial plan checking fee is 
payable at the time of applying, and the inspection 
fee then becomes payable after the first inspection. 
This is raised as an invoice on the Authority’s Debtor 
system by Systems Admin. They know an invoice is 
required from a report from the IDOX system of 
flagged applications. The flag is set when the 
Surveyor enters the commencement date. 
Unfortunately the Surveyor cannot enter this date 
whilst he is on site because of the limitations of the 
iPad software at present. They therefore have to 
remember to enter the commencement date on 
return to the office. There is a risk they will forget to 
enter the commencement date on return to the 
office. At present the Technical Support Officer has 
run a periodic report to identify any such cases so 
that invoices can be raised. A more timely solution 
could be sought from IDOX. However there may not 
be quick or simple resolution to this as it will require 
IDOX to amend the software nationally and this may 
not be a priority. 

 Officers are not currently formally recording 
conflicts of interest – whilst officers are conscious 
of avoiding any conflicts of interest such as not 
making a decision about an application made by a 
family member, they are not making formal 
declarations and no confidential record is held 
(securely) by the Planning & Economy Manager.  
Recommendations are made to address this.

Page 67



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

Page 21 of 21

We also reviewed the income and expenditure for the service and noted that the service aims to be 
cost neutral for the Authority, although historically in practice the service has cost between £50 - £100k 
each year. Analysis shows this is not due to the direct costs of the service but to the shared recharges 
spread across all services, together with the limitations imposed by competition on their ability to raise 
their fees. 

 

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
£-

£50,000

£100,000

£150,000

£200,000

£250,000

£300,000

£350,000

Income

Expenditure

BC Income & Expenditure

Previous recommendations 
We verified that all previous recommendations had been implemented or have been included in this report.

Issues for the Annual Governance Statement 
The evidence obtained in internal audit reviews can identify issues in respect of risk management, systems 
and controls that may be relevant to the Annual Governance Statement. 

No issues were identified that require disclosure within the Annual Governance Statement.

Page 68



Agenda Item
REPORT OF Service Improvement Officer
To: Audit & Governance Committee
Subject: Progress with Agreed Actions
Date: 20th November 2018 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  To provide an update on progress with implementing agreed actions.
 

1. INTRODUCTION
The Audit & Governance Committee requested a regular report on progress with agreed 
actions. This report is set out at appendix A. 

2. REPORT
A summary of the position as at the 9th November is shown at Appendix A. 

Since the Audit & Governance Committee in June 2018 there has been 3 internal audit 
reports issued containing 13 agreed new audit actions. In the same period there have 
been 20 actions completed by management. 

There were 7 internal audit actions due for completion by the end of October 2018 which 
were not completed on time. The responsible officers have been contacted and as a 
result:
- An extension has been agreed for 4 audit actions;
- A second extension has been proposed for 1 audit action;
- Two audit actions remain outstanding.

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
None

Financial Implications
None

Human Resources Implications
None

Sustainability Implications
None

Equality/Diversity
None

Risk Management
The two key outcomes from an audit are the opinion on the audit subject, which indicates the 
level of assurance that members can take, and the agreed actions to strengthen the control 
framework where testing has shown risks are not being adequately managed. The agreed 
actions are evaluated using the corporate risk matrix and the audit reports include those 
risks that are medium or high. Low risk or housekeeping matters are reported separately and 

Page 69

Agenda Item 11



directly to management for them to manage. The Internal Audit team report on progress in 
implementing the actions agreed with management to better control high and medium risks. 

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
This report complies with the Audit & Governance Committee terms of reference and the 
Audit Procedures Manual. 

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Consultation date - Councillor Philip Hackett – November 2018.

4. CONCLUSIONS
Since the A&G meeting in June 2018, 13 new actions have been identified in internal audit 
reports and 20 actions have been completed by management.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

Committee are asked to:

 Agree second extension request
 Note the progress with actions in this Quarter

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Jenny Wallace
Steve Hearse
Councillor Philip Hackett
Other officers as required

Contact Officer: Chris Dobbs

Background Papers: Audit files

Page 70



Appendix A - Progress with Agreed Actions - as at 9th November 2018

Description Medium 
Risk

High                 
Risk Total

Number of scheduled actions on last report (31/5/2018) 37  37
Number of new agreed actions this period 12 1 13

Total agreed actions   50  
Actions completed this period 19  1 20
    
Balance of scheduled actions (9/11/2018)   30
    
Number of actions where target date has not been achieved   7

                   Number of Scheduled Actions by Service  

Service Area Medium 
Risk

High                 
Risk Total  Due by 

9/11/18
Due by 

31/03/19
Due After 
01/04/19

Accountancy Services 1  1    1
Planning and Economy 3  3   3  
Customer Services 2  2   2  
Governance   0     
Housing Options   0     
Human Resources   0     
ICT 2  2  1 1  
Legal Services   0     
Planning 1  1   1  
Property 6  6   4 2
Regulatory 6  6   6  
Revenues & Benefits   0     
Safeguarding 2  2   2  
Waste & Recycling & Community Safety 1  1  1   
Strategic Manager (Services) 6  6   6  

Total o/s actions 30 0 30  2 25 3

Grant Thornton Action Plan (2017/18 Audit Findings) 8  4  2 2  

First Extension                 4

Second Extension            1 
                      

Missed Deadlines             2                   
          

P
age 71



Appendix A - Progress with Agreed Actions - as at 9th November 2018

First Extension Agreed

Service
Responsible 

Officer Status Audit
Action 

Summary
Complete 

By Comment

Strategic 
Manager Steve Hearse Extension 

Agreed
Transforming 
Torridge 2017/18 Project Costs

Was 
30/09/2018

Now
31/3/2019

We always try to ensure our cost estimates are as accurate as possible and base them 
on the best information available at the time. Budgeting and cost estimation will be 
considered during the post project review to see if there is a way that the accuracy of 
our future estimates can be improved.
Post Project Review to be scheduled

Strategic 
Manager Steve Hearse Extension 

Agreed
Transforming 
Torridge 2017/18

Project 
Management 
Methodology

Was 
30/09/2018

Now
31/3/2019

To be discussed with the Property and Procurement Manager and further actions 
agreed as necessary.
Post Project Review to be scheduled

Strategic 
Manager Steve Hearse Extension 

Agreed
Transforming 
Torridge 2017/18

Project 
Timescales

Was 
30/09/2018

Now
31/3/2019

A number of unforeseen issues have contributed to the overrun. As well as the 
retendering exercise mentioned there were also delays in the early stages due to 
changing Environment Agency requirements for building within a flood plane.
Post Project Review to be scheduled

Property Andrew Waite Extension 
Agreed

Cemeteries Audit 
2017/18

Cemetery Pro 
Security

Was 
31/08/2018

Now
31/12/2018

We found the Cemetery Pro software to be fairly weak in terms of security. It was noted:
•There are no user profiles to restrict access for instance to ‘read only’;
•Users are unable to change passwords;
•The administrator (override) password is weak;
•There is no obvious ability for a local administrator to suspend or revoke user access;
•One current user no longer works in the Cemeteries service.
These matters should be communicated back to the software supplier and resolutions 
sought.
Software provider has been contacted. We have made some improvements but 
need to update some further information with an upgrade on our system which is 
to be done shortly.

P
age 72

http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1103
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1104
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1104
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1104
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1102
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1102
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1138
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1138


Second Extension Requested

Service
Responsible 

Officer Status Audit
Action 

Summary
Complete 

By Comment

Health & 
Safety Janet Williams Extension 

Requested CSP Audit 2017/18 Resource Issues

Was 
30/09/2018

Noe
31/03/2019

Original Date = 01/05/2018. Agreed Action - Identify the additional resource required to 
effectively carry out the role and have a full plan in place for that new resource. 
Completion is subject to review with OMT - at present this additional resource 
may be best directed towards waste and property services. Once review is 
complete will report back to SMT.

Outstanding Issues

Service
Responsible 

Officer Status Audit
Action 

Summary
Complete 

By Comment

Waste Richard Haste Milestone 
Missed

Procurement Audit 
2016/17 Formal Contracts

Was 
30/09/2016 

Now 
30/09/2017

We acknowledge that there is no formal agreement in place, Peake GB are a specialist 
provider who we have used for many years, and we hold risk assessments to ensure 
that both parties are aware of and can manage risk associated with the service.

We have recently reviewed clinical waste collections which should result in a significant 
reduction in the costs payable to the contractor. If the ongoing costs associated with the 
service warrant it (are expected to be over £30k per year), we will carry out a formal 
tendering exercise and draw up a formal agreement between the partner Authorities and 
the contractor. This was to have been a joint procurement exercise by Torridge, 
North Devon and Mid Devon but North Devon and Mid Devon have shelved this. 
The current arrangement with Peake (although without a contract) allows for the 
subsidy of their disposal charge by the collection costs - if we go to the market 
then in any new arrangement will cost more for Torridge as the disposal element 
will have to be put into the existing county contract which is considerably lower. 
Other Councils do not want to change existing arrangements and incur more 
costs

The Senior Solicitor and Waste Manager are currently assessing the risks to the 
Council. 

ICT Roger Jenkins Milestone 
Missed Cyber Audit 2017/18 Opportunities 31/07/2018

An exercise to identify and record any lessons learnt’ will be undertaken so that ICT 
resource are not unnecessarily impacted by future, and potentially larger, 
transformational projects. 
No update provided

P
age 73

http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1131
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=992
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1128


Audit Progress Report and Sector Update

Torridge District Council

Year ending 31 March 2019

20 November 2018

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 13



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2018

Contents

Section Page

Introduction 3

Progress at 9 November 2018 4

Audit Deliverables 5

Results of interim audit 6

Sector Update 8

Links 14

2

P
age 75



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2018

This paper provides the Audit Committee with a report on progress in 

delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors. 

The paper also includes a summary of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to you as a 

local authority.

Members of the Audit and Governance Committee can find further useful material on our website, where we have a 

section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications. Click on the 

Grant Thornton logo to be directed to the website www.grant-thornton.co.uk .

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to 

receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or 

Engagement Manager.

/

Introduction

3

Geraldine Daly

Engagement Lead

T 0117 305 7741

M 07500 783 992

E geri.n.daly@uk.gt.com

Mark Bartlett

Engagement Manager

T 0117 305 7896

M 07880 456 123

E mark.bartlett@uk.gt.com

P
age 76

http://www.grant-thornton.co.uk/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2018

2018/19 Audit

We have begun our planning processes for the 2018/19 

financial year audit. 

Our detailed work and audit visits will begin in early 2019 

and we will discuss the timing of these visits with 

management. In the meantime we will:

• continue to hold regular discussions with management 

to inform our risk assessment for the 2018/19 financial 

statements and value for money audits;

• review minutes and papers from key meetings; and

• continue to review relevant sector updates to ensure 

that we capture any emerging issues and consider 

these as part of audit plans.

Progress at 9 November 2018

4

Other areas

Certification of claims and returns

We are required to certify the Council’s annual 

Housing Benefit Subsidy claim in accordance with 

procedures agreed with the Department for Work 

and Pensions. This certification work for the 2017/18 

claim will be concluded by the end of November 

2018.

The results of the certification work are reported to 

you in our certification letter.

Meetings

We meet with the Head of Paid Services and the 

Strategic Manager (Resources) as part of our 

regular liaison meetings, with our next meeting 

scheduled for 20 November, and continue to be in 

discussions with finance staff regarding emerging 

developments and to ensure the audit process is 

smooth and effective. 

Events

We provide a range of workshops, along with 

network events for members and publications to 

support the Council. Our latest events are our local 

government accounts workshops which will take 

place in Bristol on 7 February 2019, and in Plymouth 

on 12 February 2019.  The Council’s finance staff 

will receive invitations to attend the workshops. 

Further details of the publications that may be of 

interest to the Council are set out in our Sector 

Update section of this report.

2017/18 Audit

We have completed our audit of the Council's 

2017/18 financial statements. Our audit opinion, 

including our value for money conclusion and 

certificate of audit closure was issued on the 30 July 

2018. 

We issued:

• An unqualified opinion on the Council’s financial 

statements; and

• An unqualified value for money conclusion on the 

Council’s arrangements to secure economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources.

We have issued all our deliverables for 2017/18 and 

have concluded our work on the 2017/18 financial 

year, with the exception of the Housing Benefit 

Subsidy claim. Our Annual Audit Letter, summarising 

the outcomes of our audit is included as a separate 

agenda item.

P
age 77



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2018

Audit Deliverables

5

2017/18 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Annual Certification Letter

This letter reports any matters arising from our certification work carried out under the PSAA contract.

December 2018 Not yet due

2018/19 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Fee Letter 

Confirming audit fee for 2018/19.

April 2018 Complete

Accounts Audit Plan

We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the Audit Committee setting out our proposed 

approach in order to give an opinion on the Council’s 2018-19 financial statements.

January 2019 Not yet due

Interim Audit Findings

We will report to you the findings from our interim audit and our initial value for money risk assessment within 

our Progress Report.

March 2019 Not yet due

Audit Findings Report

The Audit Findings Report will be reported to the July Audit Committee.

July 2019 Not yet due

Auditors Report

This is the opinion on your financial statement, annual governance statement and value for money conclusion.

July 2019 Not yet due

Annual Audit Letter

This letter communicates the key issues arising from our work.

August 2019 Not yet due

Annual Certification Letter

This letter reports any matters arising from our certification work carried out under the PSAA contract.

December 2019 Not yet due

P
age 78



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2018

Local government finances are at a tipping point. 

Councils are tackling a continuing drive to 

achieve greater efficiency in the delivery of 

public services, whilst facing the challenges to 

address rising demand, ongoing budget 

pressures and social inequality.

Our sector update provides you with an up to date summary of 

emerging national issues and developments to support you. We 

cover areas which may have an impact on your organisation, the 

wider NHS and the public sector as a whole. Links are provided to 

the detailed report/briefing to allow you to delve further and find 

out more. 

Our public sector team at Grant Thornton also undertake research 

on service and technical issues. We will bring you the latest 

research publications in this update. We also include areas of 

potential interest to start conversations within the organisation and 

with audit committee members, as well as any accounting and 

regulatory updates. 

Sector Update

6

More information can be found on our dedicated public sector and local 

government sections on the Grant Thornton website

• Grant Thornton Publications

• Insights from local  government sector 

specialists

• Reports of interest

• Accounting and regulatory updates

P
age 79



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2018

CIPFA consultation – Financial Resilience Index

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

(CIPFA) has consulted on its plans to provide an authoritative 

measure of local authority financial resilience via a new 

index. The index, based on publically available information, 

will provide an assessment of the relative financial health of 

each English council.

CIPFA has designed the index to provide reassurance to councils who are financially stable 

and prompt challenge where it may be needed. To understand the sector’s views, CIPFA 

invited all interested parties to respond to questions it has put forward in the consultation by 

the 24 August.

The decision to develop an index is driven by CIPFA’s desire to support the local 

government sector as it faces a continued financial challenge. The index will not be a 

predictive model but a diagnostic tool – designed to identify those councils displaying 

consistent and comparable features that will highlight good practice, but crucially, also point 

to areas which are associated with financial failure. The information for each council will 

show their relative position to other councils of the same type. Use of the index will support 

councils in identifying areas of weakness and enable them to take action to reduce the risk of 

financial failure. The index will also provide a transparent and independent analysis based 

on a sound evidence base.

The proposed approach draws on CIPFA’s evidence of the factors associated with financial 

stress, including: 

• running down reserves 

• failure to plan and deliver savings in service provision 

• shortening medium-term financial planning horizons. 

• gaps in saving plans 

• departments having unplanned overspends and/or undelivered savings. 

Conversations with senior practitioners and sector experts have elicited a number of 

additional potential factors, including: 

• the dependency on external central financing 

• the proportion of non-discretionary spending – e.g. social care and capital financing - as a 

proportion of total expenditure 

• an adverse (inadequate) judgement by Ofsted on Children’s services 

• changes in accounting policies (including a change by the council of their minimum 

revenue provision) 

• poor returns on investments 

• low level of confidence in financial management. 

The consultation document proposes scoring six key indicators:

1. The level of total reserves excluding schools and public health as a proportion of net 

revenue expenditure. 

2. The percentage change in reserves, excluding schools and public health, over the past 

three years. 

3. The ratio of government grants to net revenue expenditure. 

4. Proportion of net revenue expenditure accounted for by children’s social care, adult 

social care and debt interest payments. 

5. Ofsted overall rating for children’s social care. 

6. Auditor’s VFM judgement. 

7

P
age 80



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2018

MHCLG – Social Housing Green Paper

The Green Paper presents the opportunity to look afresh at the regulatory framework (which 

was last reviewed nearly eight years ago). Alongside this, MHCLG have published a Call for 

Evidence which seeks views on how the current regulatory framework is operating and will 

inform what regulatory changes are required to deliver regulation that is fit for purpose.

The Green Paper acknowledges that to deliver the social homes required, local authorities 

will need support to build by:

• allowing them to borrow

• exploring new flexibilities over how to spend Right to Buy receipts

• not requiring them to make a payment in respect of their vacant higher value council 

homes

As a result of concerns raised by residents, MHCLG has decided not to implement at this 

time the provisions in the Housing and Planning Act to make fixed term tenancies mandatory 

for local authority tenants.

The Green Paper is available on the MHCLG’s website at: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/a-new-deal-for-social-housing

8

The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 

(MHCLG) published the Social Housing Green Paper, which 

seeks views on government’s new vision for social housing 

providing safe, secure homes that help people get on with 

their lives. 

With 4 million households living in social housing and projections for this to rise annually, it is 

crucial that MHCLG tackle the issues facing both residents and landlords in social housing.

The Green Paper aims to rebalance the relationship between residents and landlords, tackle 

stigma and ensure that social housing can be both a stable base that supports people when 

they need it and also support social mobility. The paper proposes fundamental reform to 

ensure social homes provide an essential, safe, well managed service for all those who need 

it.

To shape this Green Paper, residents across the country were asked for their views on 

social housing. Almost 1,000 tenants shared their views with ministers at 14 events across 

the country, and over 7,000 people contributed their opinions, issues and concerns online; 

sharing their thoughts and ideas about social housing,

The Green Paper outlines five principles which will underpin a new, fairer deal for social 

housing residents:

• Tackling stigma and celebrating thriving communities

• Expanding supply and supporting home ownership

• Effective resolution of complaints

• Empowering residents and strengthening the regulator

• Ensuring homes are safe and decent

Consultation on the Green Paper is now underway, which seeks to provide everyone with an 

opportunity to submit views on proposals for the future of social housing and will run until 6 

November 2018.

P
age 81

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/a-new-deal-for-social-housing


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2018

MHCLG – Business rate pilots

The Secretary of State has invited more councils to apply for 

powers to retain the growth in their business rates under the 

new pilots. The pilots will see councils rewarded for 

supporting local firms and local jobs and ensure they benefit 

directly from the proceeds of economic growth.

From April 2019, selected pilot areas will be able to retain 75% of the growth in 

income raised through business rates, incentivising councils to encourage growth in 

business and on the high street in their areas. This will allow money to stay in 

communities and be spent on local priorities - including more funding to support 

frontline services.

This follows the success of previous waves of business rates retention pilots, 

launched in a wide range of areas across country in 2017 and 2018.

The current 50% business rates retention scheme is yielding strong results and in 

2018 to 2019 it is estimated that local authorities will keep around £2.4 billion in 

business rates growth.

Findings from the new round of pilots will help the government understand how local 

authorities can smoothly transition into the proposed system in 2020.

Proposals will need to show how local authorities would ‘pool’ their business rates 

and work collaboratively to promote financial sustainability, growth or a combination 

of these.

Alongside the pilots, the government will continue to work with local authorities, the 

Local Government Association, and others on reform options that give local 

authorities more control over the money they raise and are sustainable in the long 

term.

9

The invitation is addressed to all authorities in England, excluding those with 

ongoing business rates retention pilots in devolution areas and London. Due to 

affordability constraints, it may be necessary to assess applications against 

selection criteria, which will include:

• Proposed pooling arrangements operate across a functional economic area

• Proposal demonstrates how pooled income from growth will be used across the 

pilot area to either boost further growth, promote financial sustainability or a 

combination of these

• Proposal sets out robust governance arrangements for strategic decision-making 

around management of risk and reward and outlines how these support the 

participating authorities’ proposed pooling arrangements

Any proposals will need to show that all participating authorities have agreed to 

become part of the suggested pool and share additional growth as outlined in the 

bid. The Section 151 officer of each authority will need to sign off the proposal 

before submission.

Proposal for new pilots had to be received the MHCLG by midnight on Tuesday 25 

September 2018.

P
age 82



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2018

Institute of Fiscal Studies: Impact of ‘Fair 
Funding Review’

The IFS has published a paper that focuses on the issues 

arising in assessing the spending needs of different councils. 

The government’s ‘Fair Funding Review’ is aimed at 

designing a new system for allocating funding between 

councils. It will update and improve methods for estimating 

councils’ differing abilities to raise revenues and their differing 

spending needs. The government is looking for the new 

system to be simple and transparent, but at the same time 

robust and evidence based.

Accounting for councils’ spending needs

The IFS note that the Review is seeking a less subjective and more transparent 

approach which is focused on the relationship between spending and needs 

indicators. However, like any funding system, there will be limitations, for example, 

any attempt to assess needs will be affected by the MHCLG’s funding policies 

adopted in the year of data used to estimate the spending needs formula.  A key 

consideration will be the inherently subjective nature of ‘spending needs’ and ‘needs 

indicators’, and how this will be dealt with under any new funding approach. Whilst 

no assessment of spending needs can be truly objective, the IFS state it can and 

should be evidence based.

The IFS also note that transparency will be critical, particularly in relation to the 

impact that different choices will have for different councils, such as the year of data 

used and the needs indicators selected. These differentiating factors and their 

consequences will need to be understood and debated.

10

Accounting for councils’ revenues 

The biggest source of locally-raised revenue for councils is and will continue to be 

council tax. However, there is significant variation between councils in the amount 

of council tax raised per person. The IFS identify that a key decision for the Fair 

Funding Review is the extent wo which tax bases or actual revenues should be 

used for determining funding levels going forward.

Councils also raise significant sums of money from levying fees and charges, 

although this varies dramatically across the country. The IFS note that it is difficult 

to take account of these differences in a new funding system as there is no well-

defined measure of revenue raising capacity from sales, fees and charges, unlike 

council tax where the tax base can be used.

The overall system: redistribution, incentives 

and transparency

The IFS also identify that an important policy 

decision for the new system is the extent to which it 

prioritises redistribution between councils, compared 

to financial incentives for councils to improve their 

own socio-economic lot. A system that fully and 

immediately equalises for differences in assessed 

spending needs and revenue-raising capacity will 

help ensure different councils can provide similar 

standards of public services, However, it would 

provide little financial incentive for councils to tackle 

the drivers of spending needs and boost local 

economics and tax bases. 

Further detail on the impact of the fair funding review 

can be found in the full report 

https://www.ifs.org.uk/uploads/publications/comms/R

148.pdf.

P
age 83

https://www.ifs.org.uk/uploads/publications/comms/R148.pdf


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2018

National Audit Office – The health and social care 
interface

The NAO has published its latest ‘think piece on the barriers 

that prevent health and social care services working together 

effectively, examples of joint working in a ‘whole system’ 

sense and the move towards services centred on the needs 

of the individual. The report aims to inform the ongoing 

debate about the future of health and social care in England. 

It anticipates the upcoming green paper on the future funding 

of adult social care, and the planned 2019 Spending Review, 

which will set out the funding needs of both local government 

and the NHS. 

The report discusses 16 challenges to improved joint working. It also highlights some of the 

work being carried out nationally and locally to overcome these challenges and the progress 

that has been made. The NAO draw out the risks presented by inherent differences between 

the health and social care systems and how national and local bodies are managing these.

Financial challenges – include financial pressures, future funding uncertainties, focus on 

short-term funding issues in the acute sector, the accountability of individual organisations to 

balance the books, and differing eligibility criteria for access to health and social care 

services.  

Culture and structure – include organisational boundaries impacting on service 

management and regulation, poor understanding between the NHS and local government of 

their respective decision-making frameworks, complex governance arrangements hindering 

decision-making, problems with local leadership holding back improvements or de-stabilising 

joint working, a lack of co-terminus geographic areas over which health and local 

government services are planned and delivered, problems with sharing data across health 

and social care, and difficulties developing. person-centred care.

Strategic issues – include differences in national influence and status contributing to social 

care not being as well represented as the NHS, strategic misalignment of organisations 

across local systems inhibiting joint local planning, and central government’s unrealistic 

expectations of the pace at which the required change in working practices can progress..

This ‘think piece’ draws on the NAO’s past work and draws on recent research and reviews 

by other organisations, most notably the Care Quality Commission’s review of health and 

social care systems in 20 local authority areas, which it carried out between August 2017 

and May 2018. The NAO note  that there is a lot of good work being done nationally and 

locally to overcome the barriers to joint working, but often this is not happening at the scale 

and pace needed.

The report is available to download from the NAO’s website at: 

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-health-and-social-care-interface/

11

P
age 84

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-health-and-social-care-interface/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2018

A Caring Society – bringing together innovative 
thinking, people and practice

The Adult Social Care sector is at a crossroads. We have yet 

to find a sustainable system of care that is truly fit for 

purpose and for people. Our Caring Society programme 

takes a step back and creates a space to think, explore new 

ideas and draw on the most powerful and fresh influences 

we can find, as well as accelerate the innovative social care 

work already taking place.

We are bringing together a community of influencers, academics, investors, private care 

providers, charities and social housing providers and individuals who are committed to 

shaping the future of adult social care.

At the heart of the community are adult social care directors and this programme aims to 

provide them with space to think about, and design, a care system that meets the needs of 

the 21st Century, taking into account ethics, technology, governance and funding.

We are doing this by:

• hosting a ‘scoping sprint’ to determine the specific themes we should focus on

• running three sprints focused on the themes affecting the future of care provision

• publishing a series of articles drawing on opinion, innovative best practices and 

research to stimulate fresh thinking.

Our aim is to reach a consensus, that transcends party politics, about what future care 

should be for the good of society and for the individual. This will be presented to directors 

of adult social care in Spring 2019, to decide how to take forward the resulting 

recommendations and policy changes.

Scoping Sprint 

This took place in October. Following opening remarks by Hilary Cottam (social 

entrepreneur and author of Radical Help) and Cllr Georgia Gould (Leader of Camden 

Council), the subsequent discussion brought many perspectives but there was a strong 

agreement about the need to do things differently that would create and support a caring 

society. Grant Thornton will now take forward further discussions around three particular 

themes:

1. Ethics and philosophy: What is meant by care? Should the state love?

2. Care in a place: Where should the power lie? How are local power relationships 

different in a local place?

3. Promoting and upscaling effective programmes and innovation

Sprint 1 – What do we really mean by ‘care’?

This will take place on 4 December. Julia Unwin, Chair of the Civil Societies Futures 

Project, former CEO of the Joseph Rowntree Association and author on kindness will 

provider her insight to spark the debate on what we really mean by ‘care’

Find out more and get involved

• To read the sprint write-ups and opinion pieces visit: grantthornton.co.uk/acaringsociety

• Join the conversation at #acaringsociety

12

P
age 85



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2018

Care Homes for the Elderly – Where are we now?

It is a pivotal moment for the UK care homes market. In the 

next few months the government is to reveal the contents of 

its much-vaunted plans for the long-term funding of care for 

older people. 

Our latest Grant Thornton report draws together the most recent and relevant research, 

including our own sizeable market knowledge and expertise, to determine where the sector 

is now and understand where it is heading in the future. We have spoken to investors, 

providers and market consultants to showcase the diversity and innovation that care homes 

can offer.

Flourishing communities are not a ‘nice to have’ but an essential part of our purpose of 

shaping a vibrant economy. Growth simply cannot happen sustainably if business is 

disconnected from society. That is why social care needs a positive growth framing. Far 

from being a burden, the sector employs more people than the NHS, is a crucible for 

technological innovation, and is a vital connector in community life. We need to think about 

social care as an asset and invest and nurture it accordingly. 

There are opportunities to further invest to create innovative solutions that deliver improved 

tailored care packages to meet the needs of our ageing population. 

The report considers a number of aspects in the social care agenda

• market structure, sustainability, quality and evolution

• future funding changes and the political agenda

• the investment, capital and financing landscape

• new funds and methods of finance

• future outlook.

The decline in the number of public-sector focused care home beds is a trend that looks 

set to continue in the medium-term. However, it cannot continue indefinitely as Grant 

Thornton's research points to a significant rise in demand for elderly care beds over the 

coming decade and beyond.

A strategic approach will also be needed to recruit and retain the large number of workers 

needed to care for the ageing population in the future. Efforts have already begun through 

education programmes such as Skills for Care’s 'Care Ambassadors' to promote social 

care as an attractive profession. But with the number of nurses falling across the NHS as 

well, the Government will need to address the current crisis.

But the most important conversation that needs to be had is with the public around what 

kind of care services they would like to have and, crucially, how much they would be 

prepared to pay for them. Most solutions for sustainable funding for social care point 

towards increased taxation, which will generate significant political and public debate. With 

Brexit dominating the political agenda, and the government holding a precarious position in 

Parliament, shorter-term funding interventions by government over the medium-term look 

more likely than a root-and-branch reform of the current system. The sector, however, 

needs to know what choices politicians, and society as a whole, are prepared to make in 

order to plan for the future. 

Copies of our report can be requested on our website

13

P
age 86

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/documents/care-homes-for-the-elderly-where-are-we-now.pdf


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2018

In good company: Latest trends in local authority 
trading companies

Our recent report looks at trends in LATC’s (Local 

Government Authority Trading Companies).These 

deliver a wide range of services across the country and 

range from wholly owned companies to joint ventures, all 

within the public and private sector. 

Outsourcing versus local authority trading companies

The rise of trading companies is, in part, due to the decline in popularity of 

outsourcing. The majority of outsourced contracts operate successfully, and continue 

to deliver significant savings. But recent high profile failures, problems with inflexible 

contracts and poor contract management mean that outsourcing has fallen out of 

favour. The days of large scale outsourcing of council services has gone. 

Advantages of local authority trading companies

• Authorities can keep direct control over their providers

• Opportunities for any profits to be returned to the council

• Provides suitable opportunity to change the local authority terms and conditions, 

particularly with regard to pensions, can also bring significant reductions in the 

cost base of the service

• Having a separate  company allows the authority to move away from the 

constraints of the councils decision making processes, becoming more agile and 

responsive to changes in demand or funding

• Wider powers to trade through the Localism act provide the company with the 

opportunity to win contracts elsewhere

Choosing the right company model

The most common company models adopted by councils are:

14

Wholly owned companies are common because they allow local authorities to retain the 

risk and reward. And governance is less complicated. Direct labour organisations such 

as Cormac and Oxford Direct Services have both transferred out in this way.

JVs have become increasingly popular as a means of leveraging growth. Pioneered by 

Norse, Corserv and Vertas organisations are developing the model. Alternatively, if 

there is a social motive rather than a profit one, the social enterprise model is the best 

option, as it can enable access to grant funding to drive growth.

Getting it right through effective governance

While there are pitfalls in establishing these companies, those that have got it right are: 

seizing the advantages of a more commercial mind-set, generating revenue, driving 

efficiencies and improving the quality of services. By developing effective governance 

they can be more flexible and grow business without micromanagement from the 

council.

LATC’s need to adapt for the future
• LATC’s must adapt to developments in the external environment

- These include possible changes to the public procurement rules after Brexit and 

new local authority structures. Also responding to an increasingly crowded and 

competitive market where there could me more mergers and insolvencies.

• Authorities need to be open to different ways of doing things, driving further 

developments of new trading companies. Relieving pressures on councils to find the 

most efficient ways of doing more with less in todays austere climate.

Overall, joint ventures can be a viable alternative delivery model for local authorities. 

Our research indicates that the numbers of joint ventures will continue to rise, and in 

particular we expect to see others follow examples of successful public-public 

partnerships.

Wholly 

owned

Joint 

Ventures

Social 

Enterprise

Download the report here

P
age 87

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/the-rise-of-local-authority-trading-companies/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2018

Grant Thornton website links

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/industries/publicsector

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/a-caring-society/

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/care-homes-where-are-we-now/

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/the-rise-of-local-authority-trading-companies/

National Audit Office link 

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-health-and-social-care-interface/

Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government links

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/social-housing-green-paper-a-new-deal-for-social-housing

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728722/BRR_Pilots_19-20_Prospectus.pdf

Institute for Fiscal Studies

https://www.ifs.org.uk/uploads/publications/comms/R148.pdf

15

Links

P
age 88

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/industries/publicsector
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/a-caring-society/
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/care-homes-where-are-we-now/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/social-housing-green-paper-a-new-deal-for-social-housing
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 

as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 

obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This proposal is made by Grant Thornton UK LLP and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement 

and signing of a specific contract/letter of engagement. The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this proposal is released strictly 

for the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 89



       .

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2018/19

Cycle 1 Cycle 2 Cycle 3 Cycle 4 Cycle 5 Cycle 6 Cycle 7 Cycle 8
12/6/18 24/718 20/11/18 19/2/19

Waivers and Non-
compliance with 
Procedure Rules

RIPA

Annual Governance 
Statement: final review

Code of Corporate 
Governance Draft AGS

Governance

AGS Review of 
Evidence

AGS Review of 
Evidence

AGS Review of 
Evidence

AGS Review of 
Evidence

Audit 
Committee

Effectiveness of Audit 
Committee

Risk 
Management Corporate Risk Register Corporate Risk Register Corporate Risk Register Corporate Risk 

Register

Audit Manager’s Opinion Managing the risks of 
fraud & corruption

Internal Audit Strategy 
and Plan for 2018/19

Progress with Agreed 
Actions

Progress with Agreed 
Actions

Progress with
Agreed ActionsInternal Audit

Audit Reports
Issued

Audit Reports
Issued

Audit Reports
Issued

Audit Reports
Issued

Draft Accounts Presentation & Approval 
of Accounts & AGS

Preparation for the 
2019/20 AccountsAccounts Report on 

Going Concern
Update 
report

Update 
report

Update 
report

Audit Findings Report Annual Audit Letter Annual Certification 
Letter

Letter of Representation External Audit Plan
External 
Audit

Note: At the end of each meeting, should it be deemed desirable, Members may meet with the External Auditors privately.

P
age 90

A
genda Item

 14



Document is Restricted

Page 91

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 93

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Code of Corporate Governance
	7 - Code of Governance 2019 first draft

	7 2017-2018 Annual Audit Letter
	9 Managing the Risk of Fraud Corruption
	10 - TDC self assessment Nov 2018

	10 Audit Reports Issued to Date
	11 Progress With Agreed Actions
	13 Grant Thornton Update Report
	14 Forward Plan
	17 Corporate Assurance Risk Register
	PART II New model


